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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Huang Chih Shen (Chairman)
Huang Li Hun, Serlina

Independent Non-executive Directors
Wong Ting Kon

Pang Yuen Shan, Christina

Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence

Chan Chung Bun, Bunny

COMPANY SECRETARY

R32BE (HKICPA) Yu Ka Gung (HKICPA)

ERXEES AUDIT COMMITTEE

BEER(FE) Wong Ting Kon (Chairman)

EZ ok Pang Yuen Shan, Christina

RAEE Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence
REZES® NOMINATION COMMITTEE

R (FE) Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence (Chairman)
HEH wong Ting Kon

EZ ok Pang Yuen Shan, Christina

FMEES REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
o (FE) Pang Yuen Shan, Christina (Chairlady)
HEH wong Ting Kon

SR IOFE Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence
BREEZES CONFLICTS COMMITTEE

BRI (F/E) Chan Chung Bun, Bunny (Chairman)
HIER Wwong Ting Kon

EZ kil Pang Yuen Shan, Christina

SR IOFE Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence

B Yip Yam Kuen

RERE AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
AR Huang Chih Shen

=BT Huang Li Hun, Serlina

BB AUDITOR

R OKEBESETENEISFT PricewaterhouseCoopers
HMESHRIRFMART R E B IZEA Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor
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LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE COMPANY
(Hong Kong Law)
Chungs Lawyers in association with DeHeng Law Offices

REGISTERED OFFICE

P. 0. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 501, 5/F, Stelux House

698 Prince Edward Road East

San Po Kong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE, HEADQUARTERS AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN

THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA (THE “PRC")
5/F., Block Two

No. 27 Huailin Road

Huaide Village, Humen Town

Dongguan City, the PRC

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Hang Seng Bank Limited

83 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China Tower

1 Garden Road

Hong Kong

BNP Paribas

63rd Floor, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Standard Chartered Bank Building

4-4A Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

¥k o ANNUAL REPORT 2021

03



NEVER

CORPORATE INFORMATION

FERTT (BIBR) BRAA

BE

EE BT 61-655%
FEARTARE
EL

TrE R

BB
EFRNERIR

ELBITRENE
KRBFETRRE

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall
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China CITIC Bank International Limited
The Chinese Bank Building

61-65 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

HSBC

Commercial Banking

Level 9, HSBC Main Building
1 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square, Grand Cayman

KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East

Hong Kong

PLACE OF LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

STOCK CODE
540

COMPANY'S WEBSITE
www.speedy-global.com

04 ARG AR A ") o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



RAERRAFRIERER AR ([ARF)
EE([25))g([E2C))MAREAQF
REMBAR (5#fFE[ANEE] % AERK])
HE - Z-—F+_-_A=+—"BHIFELKE
MARE¥EE -

RZEBEZ_—F AEBKRIEMELY
750,500,000/ 7T - 8 — T — TF L N 499.5% :
MEZRHBEABREFABRAIBRDED
31,300,000/ 7T - 8 —F — T F R L 4979.0% -

Pl 2% 15 PE 58 AR 7% £ 7
REBEAANMZRERNE REHEEG AN
REBREEEZNBEXR IHRITEERR
ERUIBROREEEERGES ([REEH
EEREER ) ARLER R _T-—4&-
B 5 i 7 9 AR 75 2 7% H U 2% 49 /5750,500,000
HBIT (— T~ T4 685,700,000/ 7T ) -+ M ARE
HIEHE RIS ES R B D R (0B E AUk
mFE RMEARAFELASHRIE S A
#]/33,800,0008 L (ZE =T F: HEE A
147,700,000/ 70) - BEAEHRME TR EMK
FHEERREE AR & E%ﬂ&iﬁaﬁ@ﬁm
B RMAREETHEENELT Rt H
BRAEEBTEBRBIR ﬁ”ﬁ%i—eﬂz%_uu&%
KtBR - NZE—FENRSFENFER
MRHBPEEREFREEEMATE -

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the “Directors”)
of Speedy Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group” or “Speedy Global”)
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

For the year 2021, the Group’s revenue increased to approximately
HK$750.5 million, representing an increase of approximately 9.5%
as compared to the year 2020, while loss for the year attributable
to equity holders decreased to approximately HK$31.3 million,
representing an decrease of approximately 79.0% as compared to the
year 2020.

Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business

The apparel supply chain servicing business which offers a wide
range of woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater knitwear
products to a number of owners or agents of global reputable brands
(the "Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business”) continued to be the
core business of the Group. For the year 2021, revenue under Apparel
Supply Chain Servicing Business was approximately HK$750.5 million
(2020: HK$685.7 million) and segment loss (before other gains — net,
finance costs — net and income tax credit) attributable to Apparel
Supply Chain Servicing Business was approximately HK$33.8 million
(2020: segmental loss HK$147.7 million). Being in line with our strategy
to focus on our strengths in product design and development, as well
as quality control and production management, we design, develop
and produce men’s and women'’s woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear
and sweater knitwear products to respond to constantly evolving
consumer preferences. A increase in revenue for the year 2021 was
mainly due to increase of sales from part of the existing customers.
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Apparel Retail Business

The Group also principally engaged in the apparel retail business
operating under the in-house brand of Unisex and under the
distribution right of Promod brand in the PRC (the “Apparel Retail
Business”) while their operations ceased by the end of May 2015.
Therefore, there was neither revenue, gross profit nor expenses from
our Apparel Retail Business during the year 2021.

Property Investment and Development Business

The Group also engaged in the property development and investment
(the “Property Investment and Development Business”). There
was neither revenue, gross profit nor expenses from our Property
Investment and Development Business during the year 2021 as the
subsidiaries which were engaged in the property development and
investment for the land at Xinmi City were fully disposed of in 2016.

Looking ahead to 2022, the global economic landscape will still be
dominated by the ongoing outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019
(the “COVID-19 Outbreak”). With cumulative COVID-19 vaccination, we
expected that it is able to get out of the current predicament and see
the light in future. However, global economy will continue to be volatile
subject to various factors such as the COVID-19 Outbreak and China-
US trade war. It will bring a series of uncertainties across the globe.
The Group will continue to pay close attention to the development of
the domestic and international epidemic and changes in the markets
to agilely respond and take appropriate actions. In order to explore
for more new opportunities with the existing and potential customers,
the Group will enhance product innovation and creativity continuously.
For production management, the Group will continue to enhance the
operating efficiency by simplifying the production processes which
results in a shorter product delivery time. In addition, the Group will
work closely with our customers to consolidate the fabrication in order
to obtain better material prices with mass volume which will enhance
our cost competitiveness. Moreover, we will try to simplify the Group's
organisation structure with each operating process in order to save
COosts.

We keep looking for other retail business opportunity with a better
profitability for the Group’s Apparel Retail Business.



BB EEZIERMENT S BRAEAKE
MMERE RBEREHHIERBENRERE-
T API 7 S AR AR AT AR M5 AT HR KR 5% B R [0 3%
MR BEMERERERER -

B AAZRBEUKRSHEUES BEAR
REIZLEEAALEERANHENR
B BR A RO BRE o AN A UNEE Ut B S L AR R
RAERIEBN S - —FEHRMEEE M
BT HE-

AERRERER DA
FERTTIEAREL

== =Y

;ii SN IR

E& —_T-__F#=A=+—8H

We are still closely monitoring the property market to determine the
appropriate investment strategy for the Group’s Property Investment
and Development Business. We will seek any appropriate property
investment and development project if we believe that it can magnify
the Group's shareholders’ return.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my
sincere gratitude to all fellow directors, management and our staff
for their unwavering dedication and contribution to our Group's
development. | would also like to thank all of our shareholders, for
their trust and continuous support over a challenging year 2021.

Speedy Global Holdings Limited
Huang Chih Shen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BE+t-A=1t—HILEE
For the year ended
31 December

—E-—F —EEF
2021 2020
BEAR AEBABTT
Results HK$ million HK$ million
Wz Revenue 750.5 685.7 9.5%
E7 Gross profit 48.8 60.0 -18.7%
BREF1S BRI ET 18 Loss before income tax (38.3) (153.0) -75.0%
KRBT A Loss for the year attributable to
FEIEEANEE equity holders of the Company (31.3) (148.8) -79.0%
FERARQAERFTAE A Basic and diluted losses per share
FEREIBRTALE AR for loss attributable to equity
BEEE holders of the Company
(ABRETYIR) for the year
(expressed in HK$ per share) (0.0521) (0.2481)

R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-—F —TFF
2021 2020
BEET BEBTT
Financial Position HK$ million HKS$ million
MEEEFE Net current assets 73.1 76.1 -3.9%
BEBRE Total assets 437.3 497.2 -12.0%
BE Borrowings 109.4 126.6 -13.6%
BB Total liabilities 316.6 346.8 -8.7%
RABIERFEEA Equity attributable to equity holders of
el the Company 120.7 150.3 -19.7%

R+t=A=+—H
As at 31 December

—E-—-F —ETHF

Financial Statistics 2021 2020

BN & Current ratio’ 1.2 1.2

& B3R Return on assets? -6.7% -24.9%

&N EIEE Return on equity? -23.1% -64.3%

BER R Gearing ratio* TEA n/a EA n/a

GFERAEAH (/) Inventory turnover days (days)® 30 42
FEUER R R BN R & Trade and bills receivable turnover days (days)

AEHZ(R)° 56 79

FENERR R ENRE Trade and bills payable turnover days (days)’
AEBRE(A) 90 115

1. MBLEAENRBDEERRB AR

2. EEBRBESRACRARAFTEARGFABRE 2
FHBEERE  BRIA100%

3. BARBAER AR AEEFEARGFANERR 3.
TR AEEE - BIRIA100%

4. EEAGBLEASNEEAENEEEERRSR 4
ReLEYIRERAE - BRIA100%

5. FEAEHDEHESERFRTOFEERRBERA 58
BRUZFREGE

6. BRERLERREAEAEMENFATHEK o
R ERERR G BRAZFREGE

7. BNERLENREASAEMESENFATHES 7.
RRRENEEREERA BRAZFRUE

08

N

Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities

Return on assets = loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company/
average total assets x 100%

Return on equity = loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company/
average total equity x 100%

Gearing ratio = total borrowings and lease liabilities net of cash and cash
equivalents/total equity x 100%

Inventory turnover days = average inventory balance/cost of sales for the year x
number of days for the year

Trade and bills receivable turnover days = average trade and bills receivable/
revenue for the year x number of days for the year

Trade and bills payable turnover days = average trade and bills payable/cost of
sales for the year x number of days for the year

ARIRFIEIRBR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BZ+-A=1+—-RHILEE
Year ended 31 December

FBT —E-TF ZZ-hEF ZT-N\F
in HK$'000 2020 2019 2018
E¥ RESULTS
Uz Revenue 750,474 685,688 1,117,035 858,343 1,178,540
EF Gross profit 48,795 59,982 144,858 97,141 129,917
BrPTiS T AT (Loss)/profit before income tax

(B18) /&7 (38,302) (153,025) 33,810 28,001 47,064

FrisfiEe,/ Income tax credit/(expense)
(F%) 7,028 4,176 (7,161) (5,779) (12,958)

ER(EE),  (Loss)/profit for the year

gl (31,274) (148,849) 26,649 22,222 34,106

Rt+t=A=+-—-H
At 31 December

FAET = —EoRF —E-NF —ZT—N\F

in HK$'000 2020 2019 2018

BEERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EEBE Total assets 437,268 497,153 700,330 611,178 708,038

BERR Total liabilities 316,560 346,822 387,702 318,641 433,980

BEFE Net assets 120,708 150,331 312,628 292,537 274,058

3R o ANNUAL REPORT 2021 09
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

£ E)

AEEEEMNMEHREAEERY  BREEMm
Rt hFE BRABEBRRITE RERM
FEETERERRBEE REEE B
R GFEEERYREE MEPREHA—WRA
FRRTTE

o AEB TR EREZTEEH -BHR
Unisex & Promodfn 8 85 & R I R 3248 -
FHEESCR _T—AFERAKERNEILEE
WERERETEEBHNWBLARAER T
—tF-_ARAME2EEY AEENEZIRE
ARESEMBUAAEBRRESTEXELE
TEEEMRERE -

ARETRENEREREREBARADA
M5 - HEMERELBEREGNME QA
ERZZE-—R"FLAVZAEL AEENE
ZURINETEURARENNERE R
BREBGHEAERERE -

Bt 5[] 8

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group focuses on providing one stop solution to our customers
by the provision of apparel supply chain services including product
design and development, fashion trend ascertaining and sampling,
raw material sourcing, production order and merchandise sourcing
management, quality control, packaging, inventory management and
logistics management.

Furthermore, the Group also engaged in the Apparel Retail Business.
Due to the unsatisfactory sales performance of the Unisex and
Promod brands, their operations ceased by the end of May 2015 and
the subsidiaries involved in the Apparel Retail Business were fully
disposed of by the end of February 2017. The Group is still closely
monitoring the apparel retail market to determine the appropriate
investment strategy for the Group’s Apparel Retail Business.

The Group also engaged in the Property Investment and Development
Business to develop the relevant market. The subsidiaries involved
in the Property Investment and Development Business were fully
disposed of in early September 2016. The Group is still closely
monitoring the property market to determine the appropriate
investment strategy for the Group's Property Investment and
Development Business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

BE+-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—EB=—-F —T_FF
2021 2020
BEEAR BEEAT
HK$ million HK$ million
Wz Revenue 750.5 685.7
— R R EREIR R — Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business 750.5 685.7
—REZEEXH — Apparel Retail Business = =
—YEREREREZT - Property Investment and Development
Business - -
E7 Gross profit 48.8 60.0
—REHRERIRTE XS — Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business 48.8 60.0
—REFTEXE — Apparel Retail Business = =
—WERERFRER — Property Investment and Development
Business - -
ZA/NEIE: EES TS DN Loss for the year attributable to
EIEFEAEE equity holders of the Company (31.3) (148.8)

10 ARIRFIEIRBR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business

Being in line with our strategy to focus on our strengths in product
design and development, as well as quality control and production
management, we design, develop and produce men’s and women'’s
woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater knitwear products to
respond to constantly evolving consumer preferences.

Gross profit and gross profit margin under our Apparel Supply Chain
Servicing Business decreased by 18.7% to approximately HK$48.8
million (2020: HK$60.0 million) and decreased to approximately 6.5%
(2020: 8.8%) respectively. The gross profit margin decreased mainly
because there was a decrease in the average selling unit price of our
products to increase sales orders from our major customers during
the year 2021. As a result, a lower gross profit was recognised as
compared to last year.

During the year 2021, we recorded a segmental loss before other
gains — net, finance costs — net and income tax credit of approximately
HK$33.8 million (2020: segmental loss HK$147.7 million).

Apparel Retail Business

There was neither revenue, gross profit nor expenses from our Apparel
Retail Business during the year 2021 as the subsidiaries which were
engaged in the Apparel Retail Business were fully disposed of in 2017.

Property Investment and Development Business

There was neither revenue, gross profit nor expenses from our
Property Investment and Development Business during the year 2021
as the subsidiaries which were engaged in the property development
and investment for the land at Xinmi City were fully disposed of in
2016.

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Distribution costs mainly represented employees’ wages for salesmen
and commission expenses related to sales of goods incurred during
the year 2021. Distribution costs decreased mainly due to decrease in
employees’ wages resulting from reduction in number of employee.

F#z o ANNUAL REPORT 2021 11
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses mainly represented the provision for
impairment of goodwill, employee benefit expenses for our
management, finance and administrative personnel, entertainment
expenses, rental expenses for our office premises, depreciation and
travelling expenses. Decrease in the administrative expenses was
mainly due to the decrease in the provision for impairment of goodwill.
Due to the weak performance of Splendid Gains International Limited,
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Splendid Gains Group”) engaged
in the business of manufacturing and trading of sweater knitwear
products resulting from the COVID-19 Outbreak, based on HKAS 36
requirements, the Group made a provision for impairment of goodwill
of approximately HK$11.4 million during the year 2021 (2020: HK$122.6
million). The impairment provision will reduce the net carrying amount
of the goodwill. However, the provision for impairment of goodwill is a
non-cash item and has no impact on the Group'’s cash flow, operations
or liquidity position. For details, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Goodwill” below.

NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL AND
CONTRACT ASSETS

Due to the COVID-19 Outbreak, one of the US customers filed for
bankruptcy in 2021 and thus, the Group made an allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$2.3 million during the year 2021
(2020: HK$11.7 million).

OTHER GAINS - NET

Other gains — net of approximately HK$0.5 million during the year 2021
(2020: HK$0.9 million) mainly represented net foreign exchange gains
of approximately HK$0.7 million, partially offset by the net losses on
disposal of the property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$0.2
million.

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

Finance income decreased by 50.0% to approximately HK$0.3 million
for the year of 2021 (2020: HK$0.6 million) primarily due to the
decrease in interest income as a result of the decrease in the deposit
amount during the year 2021.

Finance cost decreased by 22.1% to approximately HK$5.3 million
for the year 2021 (2020: HK$6.8 million). Finance costs for the year
2021 mainly represented interest expense on bank borrowings of
approximately HK$5.5 million, interest and finance charges of lease
liabilities of approximately HK$0.4 million and partially offset the net
exchange gains of approximately HK$0.6 million. Decreased in the
interest expense on bank borrowings was primarily due to decrease of
bank borrowings during the year 2021.

Al o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Income tax expense mainly represented amounts of current income
tax paid or payable at the applicable tax rates in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC. During
the year 2021, income tax credit was approximately HK$7.0 million
because of the reversal of over tax provision in prior years (2020:
HK$4.2 million).

Oon 1 April 2019, the Company acquired 100% interest in Splendid
Gains Group from Splendid Gains Holdings Limited for a cash
consideration of HK$180.0 million (the “Acquisition”). A goodwill
of approximately HK$134.0 million was recognised based on the
difference between the purchase consideration and the fair values of
the total identifiable net assets of Splendid Gains Group at the date of
the Acquisition.

The performance of Splendid Gains Group has been severely affected
due to the COVID-19 Outbreak. Since April 2021, the Splendid Gains
Group has experienced loss in key overseas customers, cancellation
or reduction of orders or requests for delayed delivery by overseas
customers, and resulted in a decline of revenue in 2021 as compared to
last year. Management of the Company does not expect this situation
to easily be resumed to normal having considered the impacts of
COVID-19 Outbreak and the current deteriorating political and economic
relationships between China and overseas countries which significantly
affects the apparel industry and business. Accordingly, the Company has
recalculated the recoverable amount of the Splendid Gains Group as at 31
December 2021, which resulted in an impairment loss of approximately
HK$11.4 million being recognised and has reduced the carrying value of
the goodwill to nil. For details, please refer to note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements in this report.

Inventories balance decreased from approximately HK$72.4 million
as at 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$44.6 million as at
31 December 2021 due to faster delivery of products to customers
during the year 2021 which resulted in a decrease in the inventory
turnover days (2021: 30 days; 2020: 42 days).

Trade and bills receivable decreased by HK$8.9 million to HK$110.2
million as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: HK$119.1 million)
because of the earlier settlement from the Company’s long-term
customers during the year 2021.
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We generally grant customers of our Apparel Supply Chain Servicing
Business a credit period of 30 to 90 days and they are generally
required to settle their trade balances with us by bank transfer or by
cheque.

Our trade and bills receivable turnover days for the year 2021 were 56
days (2020: 79 days) which decreased due to better credit control of
the Company.

Trade and bills payable decreased (31 December 2021. HK$169.1
million; 31 December 2020: HK$178.5 million) because of the
settlement by may of bank borrowing during the year 2021.

We generally enjoy a credit term of up to 90 days to settle payment.
Our trade and bills payable turnover days for the year 2021 were 90
days (2020: 115 days). The decrease in turnover days was because of
earlier payments to the suppliers during the year 2021.

The Group had bank borrowings as at 31 December 2021 in the sum
of approximately HK$109.4 million which are denominated in HK$ and
USD. All bank borrowings were made from banks in Hong Kong at
floating interest rates. As at 31 December 2021, all bank borrowings
were repayable within two years of which approximately HK$105.1
million was repayable within one year and approximately HK$4.3
million was repayable between one to two years and and all subject
to repayable on demand clauses. No financial instruments were
used for hedging purposes, nor were there any foreign currency net
investments hedged by current borrowings and/or other hedging
instruments.

During the year 2021, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity
position, with working capital financed by both internal resources and
bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$193.1 million, of which approximately
HK$103.9 million denominated in HKS, approximately HK$49.7 million
in Renminbi, approximately HK$39.1 million in United States dollar and
approximately HK$0.4 million in other currencies. As at 31 December
2021, the current ratio of the Group was 1.2 (31 December 2020:
1.2). The Group was in a strong net cash position as at 31 December
2021. The Group has sufficient and readily available finance resources
for general working capital requirement and foreseeable capital
expenditure.
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives
to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its customers.
To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group's
liquidity position to ensure that sufficient financial resources are
available in order to meet its funding requirements and commitment
timely.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions
or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency. For group companies with
Renminbi or US dollars as their functional currency, foreign exchange
risk arises primarily from translation of amounts denominated in
foreign currencies. The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.

The Group has investments in the PRC, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group's investments in the PRC can be managed
through dividends paid outside the PRC.

During the year 2021, the Group did not commit to any financial
instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no material change in the capital structure of the
Company during the year 2021. The capital of the Company comprises
ordinary shares and other reserves.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments (31 December 2020: Nil).
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To determine the eligibility of the shareholders of the Company to
attend the annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, 26 May
2022 (the "AGM"), the register of members will be closed from
Monday, 23 May 2022 to Thursday, 26 May 2022, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to be entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 20 May 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 1,048 employees,
including the executive Directors. Total staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) for the year ended 31 December 2021
were approximately HK$69.9 million, as compared to approximately
HK$76.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. Remuneration
is determined with reference to market norms as well as individual
employees’ performance, qualification and experience.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid with reference to the
Group's performance as well as individual's performance. Other staff
benefits include contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme in Hong Kong and the provision of pension funds,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance for employees who are employed by our Group pursuant
to the PRC and Cambodia rules and regulations and the prevailing
regulatory requirements.

The salaries and benefits of the Group’'s employees are kept
at a competitive level and employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group's salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually. The
Group also operates a share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 24 December 2012 (“Share Option Scheme”) where options to
subscribe for shares may be granted to the Directors and employees
of the Group.

The Company did not grant any share option under the Share Option
Scheme during the current and prior years. Details of the Share Option
Scheme are disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
on pages 73 to 75 of this annual report.
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Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in Notes 34 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements in this
report, respectively.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any other company.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have plan for material
investments and capital assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, the Group did not
have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during the year 2021.

CHARGE OF ASSETS

There was no charge on the Group’s assets as at 31 December 2021
(31 December 2020: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2021 (31 December 2020: Nil).

NEW BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY

There was no New Business Opportunity (as defined in the
Company’s prospectus dated 31 December 2012 (the “Prospectus”)
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — New Business
Opportunity”) referred by the controlling shareholders of the
Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”) as provided under the
non-competition undertaking.

IMPORTANT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no important event
affecting the Company and its subsidiaries which has occurred after
the reporting period.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

= DIRECTORS

EESEENEEEENEEERK - TRYE  OurBoard is responsible and has general powers for the management

EFeRERAFELEEAFRBAEMNE  and conduct of the business. The following table sets forth information

- regarding members of the Board during the year and up to the date of
this annual report:

®H ZERH Fir
Name Appointment Date Age
BITES Executive Directors
BEEREE Mr. Huang Chih Shen —E——FNA=+N\AR

28 September 2011 51
EBRIEX T Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina —E-ZEF - A+WMH

14 February 2020 53
BIYKBITES Independent

Non-executive Directors

HEBKE Mr. Wong Ting Kon —E——#+=-H=-+mH

24 December 2012 51
Z i 4 Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina —E-——HF+-A=+mWH

24 December 2012 49
SR M S A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence —E——H+-HZ=+mWEH

24 December 2012 74
BRI 1B 1 Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny —F——F+-A=+mWH

24 December 2012 64
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Mr. Huang Chih Shen (E&R), aged 51, is the chairman, chief
executive officer and an executive Director of the Company, and one
of the founders of the Group. He was appointed as the Director with
effect from 28 September 2011. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible for
the overall management, operations and the charting and reviewing
of corporate directions and strategies of the Group. Mr. Huang has
approximately 27 years of experience in the business of the garment
industry. Prior to establishing the Group in 2003, he has been a
director of Shing Fun Knitting & Garment Limited, a related company,
since March 1994. Mr. Huang is one of the founders and has been
the director of Speedy Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“Speedy Garment”), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, since its incorporation in 2004. Furthermore, he
has been the director of most of the Group’s subsidiaries, including
Jointex Garment Manufacturing Limited ("Jointex Garment”),
Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company Limited (“Speedy
Dongguan”), Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited (“Pageant”) and
Well Faith Enterprise Limited (“Well Faith”). Mr. Huang was appointed
as a Honorary President of the Hong Kong Association of Youth
Development since November 2017. Mr. Huang was a director of
2010/2011 the 43rd, an advisor of 2011/2012 the 44th, 2012/2013 the
45th, 2013/2014 the 46th, 2014/2015 the 47th and 2015/2016 the 48th
of Yan Chai Hospital Board Office. Mr. Huang received his secondary
school education in Hong Kong until March 1986. As at 31 December
2021, Mr. Huang held 100% interest in Sky Halo Holdings Limited (“Sky
Halo"), our corporate Controlling Shareholder.
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Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina (Z&E7&), aged 53, is appointed as
our executive Director on 14 February 2020. She has over 26 years
of experience in the textile industry and the garment field in Hong
Kong, the PRC, Europe and the United States of America. Ms. Huang
graduated from the Lingnan University in Hong Kong in 1993 with a
Higher Diploma in Banking & Finance and subsequently obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in 1996. She joined Well
Faith, a subsidiary of the Company, in April 2016 and is currently the
managing director of Well Faith. She is responsible for managing Well
Faith’s business, including sales and marketing. Ms. Huang is the sister
of Mr. Huang Chih Shen, an executive Director and the controlling
shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December 2021, Ms. Huang held
approximately 0.02% interest in the Company.

Mr. Wong Ting Kon (EE#), aged 51, is an independent
non-executive Director. He joined the Group on 24 December 2012
when he was appointed as an independent non-executive Director. He
holds a bachelor’'s degree in commerce from University of Windsor,
Canada. Mr. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Wong is currently a partner of Chan Wong & Company C.PA.
Mr. Wong has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of Bortex Global Limited (stock code: 08118) from October 2017 to
March 2022.

Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina (Z @ M), aged 49, is an
independent non-executive Director. She joined the Group on
24 December 2012 when she was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director. She obtained a bachelor degree in Laws from
City University of Hong Kong in 1995 and a master degree of Laws in
International & Commercial Law from University of Sheffield in 1996.
Ms. Pang was admitted as a solicitor in 1999 and is currently a solicitor
and work in private practice.
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Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence (R %), aged 74, is
an independent non-executive Director. He joined the Group on
24 December 2012 when he was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Chang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
arts from the University of Hong Kong in November 1970, a diploma
in education from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in December
1976 and a master’'s degree in education from Harvard University in
June 1981. Mr. Chang was the principal of Jockey Club Ti-I College
from January 1989 to August 2000. Mr. Chang was the headmaster
of Diocesan Boys' School from September 2000 to August 2012.
Mr. Chang has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of Dragon King Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08493) from
January 2018 to March 2021. Mr. Chang is also at present a freelance
writer for SingTao Newspaper and Headline Daily.

Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny (BR#R# ) , aged 64, is an independent
non-executive Director. He joined the Group on 24 December 2012
when he was appointed as an independent non-executive Director.
Dr. Chan has been serving as independent non-executive director
of Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 3683)
since September 2010, Li Ning Company Limited (stock code: 2331)
since June 2004, Glorious Sun Enterprises Limited (stock code: 393)
since June 2019, and MTR Corporation Limited (Stock code: 66) since
May 2020. Dr. Chan has over 30 years of experience in the garment
industry and is currently the chairman of Prospectful Holdings Limited.
Dr. Chan is active in community affairs in Hong Kong. He is a member
of the Court of the Open University of Hong Kong from 2012. Dr. Chan
was appointed Justice of the Peace in 2002 and awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star medal in 2004, Silver Bauhinia Star medal in 2009, Gold
Bauhinia Star medal in 2014 and Grand Bauhinia Medal in 2021 by the
Government of Hong Kong. Dr. Chan was conferred Doctor of Business
Administration, honoris causa by the Hong Kong Metropolitan
University in December 2013.



SN EIEEBEE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

RAME

RERELE 355 /RARARNARWERY
Bk ARAKRENE EHEREINERE
MHEHEAEBEREEREFE - REENR-F
—tFTANBARE BEAKEETHE
NAIMBRE - RINBAKEA REEER
BRALTMAREEHHAE - KR E MK
EEREA T ABATEER RELEET
BRLTABSHEETEM I REE S
frgg8 e

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Ka Gung (k3 E) , aged 35, the company secretary and the
chief financial officer of the Company, is in charge of planning and
management of accounting, finance related matters and corporate
reporting of the Group. Mr. Yu joined the Group in October 2017 as
the financial controller of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Yu had worked as financial controller in a listed
company in Hong Kong. He has more than 10 years of experience
working in accounting, financial management and auditing. Mr. Yu
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Accounting from Edinburgh Napier
University and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of the top
priorities of the Company. The Board believes that good corporate
governance is one of the key areas that lead to the success of the
Company and in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees, and the Board is devoted to ongoing enhancements
of the efficiency and effectiveness of such principles and practices.

During the year 2021, the Company had complied with the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except for the
following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The roles of the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company are not separate and both are performed by
Mr. Huang Chih Shen. Since the Directors meet regularly to consider
major matters affecting the operations of the Company, the Directors
consider that this structure will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Directors and the management of the
Company and believe that this structure will enable the Company to
make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently. The Company
understands the importance to comply with the Code Provision A.2.1
and will continue to consider the feasibility of appointing a separate
chief executive officer.
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CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for
securities transactions. All Directors confirmed that, after specific
enquiries were made by the Company, they have complied with the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code throughout
the period from 1 January 2021 to the date of the Board meeting
approving the annual results announcement for the year 2021.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant
employees who, because of their office or employment, are likely to
be in possession of inside information in relation to the Company’s
securities has been requested to follow such code when dealing in
the securities of the Company.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ccomposition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, of which two are
executive Directors, and four are independent non-executive Directors.
The composition of the Board and the biographical details of each
Director are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” on pages 18 to 22 of this annual report.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board discusses the overall strategy as well as the operational
and financial performance of the Company. Other Board meetings
will be held when necessary. Such Board meetings involve the active
participation, either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors. The table below sets out
the attendance of all members of the Board at the meetings held
during the year 2021:

BEEHER
Directors’

Attendance
Exges
Board Meeting

BITES: Executive Directors:

BERLE (EEFTEAAZR) Mr. Huang Chih Shen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 6/6
ERIEXT Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina 6/6
BYFHTES: Independent Non executive Directors:

BEBLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 6/6
B0k Eea Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 6/6
RIS A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 6/6
PRIRMAE 1 Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny 6/6

MEBIHATEESENEESENEAK
BBE—¥ mMEsHLtEAR EMRRIZE31002)
HFRENBEEERER-

PREFNEFTCEAIBRLEMERHAE
BEEBA-RRELEMARERBNERE
ZRERETHIRESEL YA2BEEM
ANEEESRARINANEMER-

There are currently four independent non-executive Directors who
represent over one half of the Board and Mr. Wong Ting Kon has the
appropriate professional qualifications as required by the Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for attending
regular and other Board meetings. Meeting agendas and other
relevant information are provided to the Directors in advance of Board
meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional matters in
the agenda for Board meetings.
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Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comment and records. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by
the company secretary and such minutes are open for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any Director.

All Directors attended the annual general meeting of the Company on
27 May 2021.

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing the
Company's affairs, including the responsibilities for the adoption
of long term strategies and appointing and supervising senior
management to ensure that the operation of the Group is conducted
in accordance with the objective of the Group. The Board is also
responsible for determining the Company’s corporate governance
policies which include: (i) development and review of the Company's
policies and practices on corporate governance; (i) review and
monitoring of the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management; (iii) review and monitor the
issuer’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) develop, review and monitoring of the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and (v) review of the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain
responsibilities are delegated to various Board committees which
have been established by the Board to deal with different aspects of
the Company’s affairs. Unless otherwise specified in their respective
written terms of reference as approved by the Board, these Board
committees are governed by the Company’s articles of association
as well as the Board's policies and practices (in so far as the same
are not in conflict with the provisions contained in the articles of
association). With the new composition of members of the nomination
committee, remuneration committee, audit committee and conflicts
committee, the independent non-executive Directors will be able to
effectively devote their time to perform the duties required by the
respective Board committees.
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The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing
its strategies and the day-to-day operation to the management of
the Company under the leadership of the executive Directors. Clear
guidance has been made as to the matters that should be reserved to
the Board for its decision which include matters on, inter alia, capital,
finance and financial reporting, internal controls, communication
with shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and
corporate governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. The financial statements set out on pages 90 to
184 were prepared on the basis set out in Note 2.1 to the financial
statements. Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely
manner in accordance with statutory and/or regulatory requirements.
The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external
auditors of the Company on the Company's financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 80 to 89 of this
annual report.

Throughout the year 2021, the Company complied with Rules
3.10(1), (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Except as disclosed in the
section “Directors and Senior Management Profile” above, there is
no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
among members of the Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each Director upon their respective appointment received relevant
guideline materials and attends a training regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of interest of the Group.
Continuing briefings and professional development to Directors will be
arranged whenever necessary.

During the year 2021, the Directors have attended external training
and/or seminars and have read materials covering topics such as
business and performance of the Company and accounting issues.
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All independent non-executive Directors have entered into letters of
appointment with the Company for a specific term of three years,
subject to re-election.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation. However, if the number of Directors
is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one third shall be the retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire
in each year will be those who have been the longest in the office
since their last re-election or appointment, but as for persons who
became or were last re-elected as Directors on the same day, those
who should retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot. Such retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting. All Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of shareholders after their appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

The Company established a nomination committee on 24 December
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with Code
Provisions A.5.2. Its terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis; to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members;
to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and to make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
The nomination committee comprises 3 independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence (Chairman),
Mr. Wong Ting Kon and Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina.
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During the year 2021, one meeting of the homination committee was
held and the attendance records of individual committee members are
as follows:

HE/
ETEBRRE

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held

RIS A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 1/1

EERLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 1/1

i 2+ Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 11
REER Nomination Procedure

RYBEEENEZANRR REZEEHK2E
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When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the nomination
committee will carry out the selection process by making reference
to the skills, experience, education background, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, and also the Company’'s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations required for the positions.
All candidates must be able to meet the standards as set forth in
Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be
appointed as an independent non-executive Director should also meet
the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the Board for
approval.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy in September
2013 and amended the policy in December 2018. Pursuant to the
board diversity policy, the nomination committee will carry out
the selection process by making reference to a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. If it
involves the appointment of an independent non-executive director
of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall also consider the
perspectives, skills and experience that the person can bring to the
Board, and how the person would contribute to the diversity of the
Board. The Company shall take into account its own business model
and specific needs, and disclose the rationale for the factors it uses
for this purpose. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the Board as at
the date of this annual report:

Chinese
EIN

Ethnicity Age Group Directorship with
&bk FHAaR the Company
(Number of years)
EERDF
E (F8)

For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted and achieved:

(1) at least one third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(2) at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications,

(3) at least 40% of the members of the Board shall have more than
20 years of experience in the garment industry and shall have
China-related work experience; and

(4) at least one of the members of the Board shall have property
investment and development experience.

ARIRFIEIRBR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on 24 December
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.25
and 3.26 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
remuneration committee was adopted in compliance with Code
Provisions B.1.2. Its terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of
the Group and to ensure none of the Directors determine their own
remuneration. The emoluments of executive Directors are determined
based on the skills, knowledge, individual performance as well as
contributions, the scope of responsibility and accountability of such
Directors, taking into consideration the Company’s performance
and prevailing market conditions. The remuneration policy of
independent non-executive Directors is to ensure that they are
adequately compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to the
Company's affairs including their participation in respective Board
committees. The emoluments of independent non-executive Directors
are determined with reference to their skills, experience, knowledge,
duties and market trends. The remuneration committee consists of
3 independent non-executive Directors namely Ms. Pang Yuen Shan,
Christina (Chairlady), Mr. Wong Ting Kon and Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung,
Terence.

Details of remuneration of Directors are set out in Note 34 to the
financial statements.

During the year 2021, one meeting of the remuneration committee
was held to, amongst others, assess performance of executive
directors, approve terms of the executive directors’ service contracts,
and review and approve the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. The attendance records of
individual committee members are as follows:

HE

BITERRE

Number of

Meetings

Attended/Held

i 2+ Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 1/1
EE#HELE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 11
SRIVEE SR A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 11
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 24 December 2012
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 and Rule
3.22 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the audit
committee was adopted in compliance with Code Provisions C.3.3
to C.3.7. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the audit committee, among other things,
are to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors, review the financial
statements and provide material advice in respect of financial
reporting, and oversee risk management and internal control
procedures of the Company at least annually. The audit committee
consists of 3 independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong
Ting Kon (Chairman), Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina and Mr. Chang
Cheuk Cheung, Terence.

The audit committee reports to the Board and has held
regular meetings since its establishment to review and make
recommendations to improve the Group's financial reporting process
and internal controls.

During the year 2021, three audit committee meetings were held to
review and discuss with the management of the Company and the
external auditors the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, as well as internal controls and other financial reporting
matters. The attendance records of individual committee members are
set out below:

HE

BITERRE

Number of

Meetings

Attended/Held

ETHEE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 3/3
EZ05] Ee G Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 2/3
SRIVEE SR A& Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 3/3

R-B-—F EFREBREERHE.
e T TYN T pepbig ENCL)
o

During the year 2021, the Board has not taken a different view from
the audit committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditors.
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CONFLICTS COMMITTEE

The Company established a conflicts committee on 24 December
2012. The primary duties of the conflicts committee are to monitor
and identify actual or potential issues of conflict of interests among
the Company’s Controlling Shareholders, and to ensure that the
Controlling Shareholders involving such conflicting interests would
take appropriate precautions and abstain from making decisions in
connection with such issues. The conflicts committee consists of four
independent non-executive Directors and one independent external
expert, Mr. Yip Yam Kuen.

RIE-—F FREELZESEET—RKE  During the year 2021, one meeting of the conflicts committee
FOUA(Hh BB EHERKREN -2 —=  were held to, amongst others, review the deed of non-competition
FH+ A FWMABT 2 T FAERZE - undertakings in respect of the Controlling Shareholders entered into
RIEBRRBEETHEBEALE - SZEEKE  on 24 December 2012 to ensure ongoing compliance with the same

ZHEREIT

by the Controlling Shareholders. The attendance records of individual
committee members are as follows:

HE
HITERNRE

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held

PRIRM 18 4 Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny 1/1

EEBRLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 1/1

T + Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 11

SRS A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 11

HRELE Mr. Yip Yam Kuen 11
3 AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

BE-_ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFERE
kB el SEFTATIR IR | X RIS o

The fees in respect of audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers for the year ended 31 December 2021 are

ZERWNT: set out as follows:

Bt EBNHER
Fee paid/

payable
(F#&x)
(HK$'000)

REBEREZRE Audit services for the Group 1,500
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Mr. Yu Ka Gung, being our company secretary, is primarily responsible
for the company secretarial work of the Group. Mr. Yu Ka Gung is also
the Company’s chief financial officer. The Company confirms that
Mr. Yu Ka Gung, for the year of 2021, attended no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
and the assets of the Company against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper books and records for the
provision of reliable financial information, and ensuring compliance
with the relevant rules and regulations. The Board is also responsible
for overseeing the Group's risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
established systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Group adopts a complete process style of risk management in a
functional bottom up manner, including risk identification, assessment,
evaluation and treatment. The functional areas across the Group
provide input of risks with treatments, which are appraised and
maintained. The risk management system, as well as the internal
control system, are continuous, proactive and systematic processes.

With the implementation of internal audit function, the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems is reviewed by
conducting internal audit assignments. Recommendations for major
observations of control weaknesses from the audits will be provided,
S0 as to resolve material internal control defects.
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The Audit Committee, which was delegated by the Board, has
conducted a review, via an appointed Certified Public Accountant
firm to perform internal audit function, on the effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control system put in
place by management covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Audit
Committee considered that the risk management and internal control
system of the Group are effective and adequate.

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene
an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") of the Company are
prepared in accordance with the Articles of Association as follows:

(1) Two or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company;, shall have the right, by written notice, to require
an EGM to be called by the Directors of the Company for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

(2)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal office of the Company in Hong Kong

Address:  Unit 501, 5/F, Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Email: info@speedy-global.com

(3) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board does not proceed
duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days,
the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them may do
so in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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For matters in relation to the Board, the shareholders can contact the
Company at the following:

Address:  Unit 501, 5/F, Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

Email: info@speedy-global.com

Tel: (852) 3583 1111

Fax: (852) 3583 1118

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
shareholder should lodge a written notice of his or her proposal
(“Proposal”) with his or her detailed contact information at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Board will be asked to include the Proposal in the
agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for consideration
of the Proposal raised by the shareholder concerned at the general
meeting varies according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of ordinary resolution of the Company.

(2) At least 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in an
EGM of the Company or an ordinary resolution of the Company
in an annual general meeting of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with
all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a high level
of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. The Company
is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its shareholders and public investors.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including annual reports and public announcements.
Extensive information about the Company's activities for the year
ended 31 December 2021 has been provided in this annual report.
While the AGM provides a valuable forum that facilitates direct
communications between the Board and its shareholders, the
Company also maintains its website www.speedy-global.com to
provide an alternative communication channel for the public and
its shareholders. All corporate communication and Company’s
latest updates are available on the Company's website for public's
information.

During the year 2021, there has been no significant change in the
Company'’s constitutional documents.

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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ABOUT SPEEDY GLOBAL

The Group is primarily engaged in the apparel supply chain
servicing business in the year of 2021. The Group specialises
on product design and development, fashion trend ascertaining
and sampling, raw material sourcing, production order and
merchandise sourcing management, quality control, packaging,
inventory management and logistics management. As a leading
supply chain service provider, the Group sources and delivers
high quality products, such as woven wear, cut-and-sewn
knitwear and sweater knitwear, to a number of owners or agents
of global reputable brands across continents.

The Group appointed Allied Sustainability and Environmental
Consultants Group Limited (stock code: 8320) as an independent
consultant to prepare the Report and to conduct materiality
assessment on the Group's sustainable development.

ABOUT THE REPORT

2.1. Introduction
This is the sixth ESG Report published by the Group. With a
vision of “Weaving a Value-added Garment Supply Chain”,
the Group would like to share its efforts in retaining
competitiveness in the garment market, preserving a close-
knit team and community and moving toward sustainability
in this Report.

2.2. Reporting Standards

The Report was prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in the Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). In preparation of the Report, the Group strictly
adhered to the principles of Materiality, Quantitative,
Balance and Consistency to disclose the ESG-related
measures and performances.

The corporate governance of the Group was prepared in
accordance with all applicable code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code under Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Information regarding
the Group's corporate governance was set out separately
in the “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

MEIRZENR AR AR o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2.3. Reporting Scope

The Report summarised the ESG performances of the
Group during the 2021 financial year from 1 January 2021
to 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”).

The Report covered the operations of the apparel supply
chain services. The reporting scope included the following
major business units of the Group:

o Speedy Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong)
Company Limited,;

° Jointex Garment Manufactory Limited;

° Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company
Limited;

. Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Limited;
° Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited,
° Well Faith Enterprise Limited; and

° Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited

Part of the Group’s manufacturing process was outsourced
to independent contractors, therefore, the relevant
disclosure was excluded from the Report.

The Group’s businesses in apparel retail and property
investment were also excluded from the Report as no
transaction was recorded during the Reporting Period.
Likewise, the Report excluded the Group’s remaining
subsidiaries because of the insignificant level of impact of
their operations on the Group's environmental and social
aspects. However, the Group shall consider any ESG-related
impacts due to any major future change in the business
scope of these subsidiaries.
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2.4. Board of Director’'s Statement on ESG

2.5.

Governance

The Board believes that sustainable development is the key
to successful development of companies in the long term.
The Group is committed to incorporating environmental,
social and governance considerations into its business
operations, and pledges to improve the sustainability
performances through resources optimisation in the
operation. As the highest governance body, the Board is
responsible for the overall direction and decision making
related to ESG governance, and assigned top management
to coordinate the implementation of ESG initiatives and
reporting. In accordance with the material ESG-related
topics identified through stakeholder engagement surveys,
the Group's ESG performance, progress, opportunities and
risks are regularly reviewed and discussed by the Board.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality
Assessment

The Group believes that the perspective of stakeholders
could provide guidance on its long-term business
development. In this connection, the Group is dedicating to
promoting active stakeholder engagement via establishing
effective communication channels and collecting their
feedback.

~ma] e SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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With the assistance of the external consultant, this year a
quantitative online survey was conducted anonymously
with internal and external stakeholders. The Group
comprehensively analysed the results of the online survey
and formed a ranking and a matrix of materiality.

Materiality Matrix

EEMER
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EEH R bt
Materiality Topic Indicator
SEE R EE 1
Most Material Protecting intellectual property rights
R&EF 2
Anti-corruption
fribET RagHl%T 3
Prevention of child labour and forced labour
JEIKE R 4
Waste water management
ZERRERENTIERE S
A safe and healthy working environment
EmEE 6
Product responsibility
REZFLE 7
Protecting customer privacy
EmTEREEERE 8
Product safety and quality management
52 BEYER 9
Material Waste management
BIRRMEE R 10
Resources and material management
Zfb - FERE RERER M
Diversity, equal opportunity and eliminating discrimination
FAKER 12
Water management
EBREERRS 13
Employment management system
BEREREABNER 14
Greenhouse gas and air emissions management
BERE R 15
Energy management
BFIlRER 16
Training and development
EEEBEBHRRERRAERERNOZE 17
Managing the impact of operations on the environment and natural resources
HrEsEE R 18
Supply chain management
AFERBETEH 19
Fair and responsible marketing
HiErtE 20
Caring for the community
JE ¥ R AR 21, 21
Responding to climate change
LERMER 22

Employer-employee relations

BEETEEEG NEEER By carrying out a materiality assessment, the Group was
AATHRBHENBERRMR B able to grasp a profound understanding of stakeholders'
EeRBBEAEENRE Ltk perspectives and insights. The Board shall take the
ERAHMKEEEBREHINEE identified material issues into consideration in terms of the
FEAEERBEEENEZRHE Group's ESG approaches and measures. The Group would
WEGERM A mMEHRR g continue to review the material issues and report on its
RERKR - ESG performances in a transparent manner.

ARIRFIEIRBR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2.6. Contact Information

For any comments or recommendations on the Report,
please contact the Group through the contacts details set
out below:

Unit 501, 5/F, Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East,
San Po Kong, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 3583 1111

Fax: (852) 3583 1118

GARMENT MARKET COMPETITIVENESS

3.1. Product Development

One of the core objectives of the Group was to build its
brand with advanced service and quality products in the
garment apparel industry. Accordingly, the Group has been
dedicated to upholding its standards in light of delivering
premium products and services to tailor customers’
preferences.

As one of the leading providers in the garment apparel
industry, the Group constantly sought improvements on
the design and quality of all of the Group’s products.
In addition, the Group regularly reviewed and adjusted
the cost, production, quality, technology and design in
accordance with market demands and trends in order to
satisfy its niche market.
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Em&at
KB
Product Design
and Development

RATEHREE
Raw Material
Sourcing

EmEE
Production
Management

D8
Distribution

To provide innovative and customised designs, the Group
has set up the Research and Development Centres (the
“Centres”) with showrooms. On one hand, the Centres
ensured that all products and designs met customers’
requirements and expectations. On the other hand, the
Centres constantly drove improvements and innovation
in products and services by providing tailored designs
With the establishment of the Centres, the Group was able
to leverage its extensive knowledge of market trends to
create advanced products.

TR R SRt

Prototypes created for customers’ approval

W EIE R ETR] B

Orders with designs received from customers

ARSI EEFRERE

Suggestions to customers on types of fabric

RN S| REERMRHER

Select and recommend quality raw material suppliers

BEREESRENE=FHEFEER
BEFEHETEERSEEE

Retain and manage a diversified list of third-party manufacturers and
allocate production according to requirements of different sales orders

B FEEIRODEERERZEERNER
Warehousing, inventory control and delivery of products to designated
warehouses and retail outlets
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The Group recognised the suppliers and contractors as
a crucial part of ensuring product quality and delivery.
Thus, the Group’s operational model and policy focused
on enhancing the management of suppliers/contractors’
quality. To diversify the supply chain, the Group anticipated
to expand the geographic spread of suppliers through
engaging suppliers located in Southeast Asia, including
Cambodia.

Under the operational model, the Group forced
implementations to oversee its suppliers/contractors
and conducted assessment on them in order to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply chain.
By this means, the Group shall exclude all suppliers/
contractors that did not pass or undergo the assessment.

The Group has set up a monitoring system to manage the
procurement practices. For instance, the system kept track
of the purchasing price of raw materials for the Group’s
long-term evaluation. The Group also reviewed the system
records periodically to identify any abnormal fluctuation in
terms of prices and supplies. Besides, all the procurement
procedures were standardised to ensure that suppliers
were in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations.

The breakdown of suppliers by geographic location were
listed as below:

RBULESD

HEmEE
Breakdown by Number of
Geographic Location suppliers
Cambodia 17
Hong Kong 41
Macau 1
PRC 441
Total 500
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3.3. Product Quality and Safety

To further enhance competitiveness, the Group has placed
a high emphasis on the policies of quality assurance and
product responsibility. In this instance, the Group invited
the National Product Quality Supervision and Inspection
Centre for Apparel and Garment Products of Textile
Industry to conduct checks on the quality of fabrics and
garments.

In recognition of the Group’s ongoing effort, the Business
Social Compliance Initiative, a recognised initiative aiming
at improving social performance in the increasingly
complex global supply chains, awarded the Group with
the quality management certification. This certification
demonstrated the Group’s dedication to deliver quality
products and build customers’ satisfaction. In pursuance
of additional global accreditation, the Group is committed
to further providing tailored and high-quality products and
services for customers.

Throughout the value chain, starting from product design
to delivery, the Group has fully complied with all standard
requirements and relevant laws and regulations. As a
result of the Group's effort in upholding product and
service quality, there was no material complaint or product
recall over the Reporting Period. However, in case of any
future complaint, the Group shall respond in a timely and
professional manner to address the issues and develop
measures to prevent recurrence of similar situations.

Product Quality

In the Cambodia factory, the Group recognised quality
control as one of its key priorities. In this regard, the
Quality Assurance (“QA") department took samples of
incoming materials through various tests to ensure the
durability and pigmentation fulfilled customers’ preference.
Clear operation guidelines and stringent standards were
posted in the work stations for employees to follow. The
Inspection department also performed quality checks at
different production stages to test the products prior to
packaging.
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4.1.

Product Safety

Delivering safe products was another priority in the factory
from souring, manufacturing to packaging. The Group
established rigorous procedures and standards to inspect
the fabric materials and products. For instance, the Group
required every finished product to pass through metal
detector before shipping to prevent the attachment of
needle on the sweaters.

Intellectual Property and Data Protection

Upholding a responsible and ethical business image also
helped to enhance competitiveness; therefore, the Group
has stipulated policies to protect intellectual property
rights and the private data of all consumers, suppliers and
contractors.

In respect of suppliers’ intellectual property rights and
confidentiality, the Group safeguarded them by restricting
the use of their trademarks in any unauthorised events.
In addition, the Group has a well-established recording
system and deterioration procedures for the data collection
and handling. As outline in the Group’s internal rules, all
employees were required to adhere to the system. Besides,
the Information Technology Department strictly prohibited
unauthorised employees to access any party's private data
through electronic devices or relevant systems.

Cohesive Team

Devoted employees were the cornerstones of the Group’s
business success as they supported daily operation and
drove long-term development. Therefore, the Group is
devoted to creating an inclusive workplace for employees
to dedicate themselves and achieve continuous growth
with and within the Group. To build such working
environment, the Group strived to manage its human
resources in a respectful and fair manner.
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Employment and Labour Standards

The Group adopted a non-discrimination and open
recruitment approach, and selected suitable talents based
on their skills and qualifications. During the recruitment
process, candidates were required to provide proof of
qualification, identification verification documents and
working permits to eliminate the risks of hiring child and
forced labour. If any forced or child labour was discovered,
the Group would immediately intervene the violation and
offer reasonable compensation based on the SA8000
standard developed by Social Accountability International.

The Group highly concerns the employment relationship
with our employees and strictly prohibits unreasonable
dismissal of staff. The period of notice of termination is
clearly stated in the employment contract in accordance
with the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, while there
is appropriate communication with employees.

In effort to uphold a cohesive and harmonious working
culture, the Group has established an anti-discrimination
policy in accordance with the local laws. The policy
safeguarded employees’ equal opportunities and
prohibited all kinds of discrimination regarding gender,
race, age, religion and disability in the workplace. To
enhance employees’ relationships and sense of belonging,
the Group also organised staff activities and festive
celebrations. In the purpose of protecting employees’
health, the Group did not organise any staff activities amid
the pandemic outbreak in the Reporting Period.

To attract and retain talents, the Group offered competitive
remuneration packages, additional paid leaves, reasonable
working hours and rest periods. On top of that, the
Group also provided rewards and bonus to outstanding
employees as an incentive to praise and encourage
their continuous hard work. In the Reporting Period, the
Group complied with all relevant laws and regulations on
employment and labour practices.



IRIF B NEIBHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HERESHA ~NEEHEHF1,048% As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had a
EE -ETRAEREDHIEE D total of 1,048 employees. The employment breakdown by
Ul different categories is listed as below:
EE A
Number of
Employees
HWEB A" Total Number of Employees 1,048
2 Bl By Gender
ES Male 339
ks Female 709
ZIEEER By Employee Category
EIRE Management 25
SE Senior 37
R Junior 986
BERRA By Age Group
1 R31kE <31 413
31Z2405% 31-40 469
A1 ZE505% 41-50 118
503t LA £ >50 48
BiENE By Geographical Location
s PRC 160
BB Hong Kong 32
RIpE Cambodia 856
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Overall 24%
By Gender

Male 27%
Female 23%
By Age Group

<31 21%
31-40 22%
41-50 38%
>50 46%
By Geographical Location

PRC 76%
Hong Kong 53%
Cambodia 14%

Safe and Healthy Workplace

The Group endeavoured to provide a safe and healthy
workplace for employees through risk identification
and prevention. Therefore, the Group conducted risk
assessment to identify the underlying industrial risks as
a way to initiate safety preventive measures. Moreover,
the Group carried out safety audits on site to further
analyse the relevant measures, review the efficiency of the
implemented safety measures and develop improvement
plans. On top of that, the Group provided the employees
with necessary safety equipment in the workshops to
reduce the risk and impact of industrial accidents.

The Cambodia factory implemented a number of measures
to oversee and maintain on-site safety. A Safety Committee
was established to constantly review and update safety-
related practices in the Cambodia factory. In addition to
posting safety warnings and operational guidelines, fire
safety training and urgent evacuation were conducted
regularly to enhance staff's capacity to react and escape in
case of emergency. The Group also set up on-site medical
facilities to provide medical support for staff at all time.
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As a result of the sound safety measures, the Group
complied with all applicable laws and regulations in
regard to occupational health and safety with no report
of work-related fatality in the past three years including
the Reporting Period. The Group had achieved zero work-
related injury cases and zero lost working days during the
Reporting Period.

Training and Development

The Group recognised a strong workforce as the key to
maintain efficiency of its business operation, and strived to
support employees’ capacity building. Induction trainings
were provided to factory staff as a way to convey the
Group’s expectations and enhance their capability to
conduct duty. During the Reporting Period, 9 junior new
employees (3 female and 6 male) participated in a 4-hours
training programme in Cambodia factory, covering topics
such as production technigues and safety standards.

Anti-corruption

To uphold an ethical and transparent business principle, the
Group has established internal policies and corresponding
standards to guide employees on preventing corruption
behaviours, including bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group has set up whistleblowing policy
and channels for employees to report on any suspected
misconduct. The senior management was responsible for
investigating the cases and taking further follow-up actions.
During the Reporting Period, all the board members and
other staff participated in an one-hour anti-corruption
training to become familiar with the latest anti-corruption
laws and standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not
encountered any material non-compliance with local laws
and regulations relating to anti-corruption.
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4.2. Communities Engagement

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed
to bringing positive impacts in the community in which
it operates. As a way to contribute back to the local
community, the Group has donated approximately
HK$521,000 to various organisations such as, World Vision,
Giordano World Without Strangers Charitable Fund Ltd, Yan
Chai Hospital, Hong Kong Shine Tak Foundation Association
Limited and Yaumati Kai Fong Welfare Advancement
Association Ltd during the Reporting Period. The Group
also encouraged employees to participate in volunteering
activities and has formed a volunteering service team.

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSCIOUSNESS

5.1. Climate Change

Climate change poses both physical and transition risks to
all sectors and geographical regions. The Group recognises
the importance of climate change mitigation and
adaptation to its business continuity. At such, the Group
has identified potential physical and transitional risks that
may affect its business.

The operations of the Group are located in Hong Kong, PRC
and Cambodia. With extreme weather, including typhoons
and heavy rain, to be expected more frequent with climate
change, the Group has already formulated emergency
plans to cope with these threats.

For the climate transition risks, it is believed that the
environmental-related policies and regulations such as
carbon emission requirements will be tightened in the
future. The Group has formulated internal standard that
exceeds basic compliance in order to prepare for any
regulatory changes.

BIRDKIEIRBPR /A ] e SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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5.2. Environmental Management

With a focus on production management, the Group always
paid close attention to the implications and importance of
environmental protection in its operations. Thus, the Group
strived to bring in sustainable values into its daily business
activities through a series of environmental control
measures.

The Group established a set of environmental management
policies in accordance with the Environmental
Management System Standards, ISO 14001, of the
International Organisation for Standardisation. In addition
to adopting the international standards, the internal
policy also followed the 12 principles of the World Wide
Responsible Apparel Production. Under such policy, the
Group prevented any non-compliance on the local relevant
environmental laws and regulations.

As a global provider outsourcing the manufacturing of
products, the Group realised its responsibility in ensuring
the environmental stewardship of its suppliers and
contractors. Thus, the Group stipulated an environmental
manual to oversee their impacts and compliance. Under
the manual, the Group required them to implement
environmental management thoroughly and comply with
all relevant environmental laws and regulations in where it
operates.

In the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to environmental
protection, emissions, resource consumption and waste
management.
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5.3. Energy Use and Emissions

On top of managing the performance of the contractors,
the Group also placed an emphasis on reducing its
environmental footprint. In this regard, the Group
implemented measures to periodically monitor and
progressively reduce both energy consumption and
emissions.

Energy Consumption

The Group consumed electricity at offices, factory
buildings, showrooms, canteen, dormitory and other
common areas under its operational control; petrol fuel
for vehicular transportation; and wood fuel for generating
hot water. To conserve energy, the Group required
employees to turn off all lighting, electrical appliances and
equipment in the premises when not in use. In addition,
environmentally friendly operating guidelines are posted in
the factory buildings for staff to follow.

In support of energy conservation, most of the existing
lighting fixtures have been replaced by electricity-
saving devices in the Dongguan premise. Meanwhile, the
Cambodia factory integrates passive building designs to
bring in more natural lighting for electricity reduction.
Environmental audit is also conducted annually to evaluate
the feasibility of installing energy-efficient appliances.

BIRDKIEIRBPR /A ] e SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Group has also set up a monitoring system to evaluate
and regulate energy consumption. The system also
collected relevant energy usage data in order to initiate
future reduction plans and observe any abnormal trends.
Electricity meters were installed in the factory to monitor
consumption and perform risk assessment. In the following
year, the Group is targeting to maintain or reduce the
energy intensity below this year's level.

To support the development of renewable energy, the
Cambodia factory has participated in a solar energy project
initiated by a local power generation company. The power
generation company has installed solar energy generation
systems in the Cambodia factory and allowed the factory
to purchase electricity at a discount. During the Reporting
Period, the Group has purchased approximately 674 MWh
solar energy, which accounts for approximately 26% of the
electricity consumption of the Cambodia factory, and saved
approximately USD16,000.

AEEHE

Overview of Electricity Consumption
EBEM By
Business Units Unit
BERAE JK LIS 87.6 143.0
Hong Kong Office Mwh
REMRRIRBR AR QTN K E B 616.2 563.9
Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company Limitedhoe MWh
BEEX (BEM) FRAQ M K E B 48.2 132.0
Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Limitedhete MWh
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited JK LB 2,566.0 2,864.7
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited MWh
HEEE JK EL B 3,318.0 3,703.6
Total consumption MWh

M1 ARRREIBEE2EEFAKR
WMoOEECHENBREERE K
BEHARZAFRFEKERA
AREEN MeXHR(EMNE
RARFEERD -

Note 1: Since the staff dormitory in Dongguan has become fully
operational and most of the operations have been relocated from
Huizhou to Dongguan, the electricity consumption of Dongguan
Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company Limited increased while
Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Limited's decreased during
the Reporting Period.
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REFEHE
Overview of Fuel Consumption
ME R By
Fuel Type Unit
VR H F 50,895 91,860
Petrol Noe 1 L
L 2 F 3,600 7,000
Diese|Note 2 L
AR ERE NI 1,105 1,183
Wood Fuel Tonnes
Mzt MEEETREBENTERERER Note 1: The decrease of petrol consumption was due to the reduced use
e of motor vehicle and transportation.
Mz ARBREHARBRE HHEMRY Note 2. As the electricity supply in Cambodia was relatively stable during
BE - BERERRD  SOBEFRT the Reporting Period, the use of the generator reduced, which led
&2 D o to the decrease in diesel consumption.

i E R R E R
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SETHLEREHRBAMETE
T EREEERRTZETE B
ERPEETEN T -KF NEE
NARGFHHEEEERERE £

Greenhouse Gas and Air Emissions

As a result of the consumption of electricity, fuel and wood
combustion, direct and indirect greenhouse gases (“GHG")
and air emissions, such as particulate matter, sulphur
dioxide and nitrogen oxides were generated. Through
the monitoring system, the Group has also audited GHG
emissions as a way to review its environmental footprint
and help develop reduction plans. The Group is targeting
to maintain or reduce the GHG intensity below this year’s

56

HEREKEEZEKFE- level in the following year.
AEREHEHREE

Overview of GHG Emissions
BE B
Indicator Unit
HE— EEAEREHR W tixE 2 2,238.3 2,627.0
Scope 1: Direct GHG Emission Tonnes of CO,

equivalent (tCO.e-)

fE—FHEAEREHER M_ftiREE 2,295.3 2,727.6
Scope 2: Indirect GHG Emission tCO,e-
MEERBHNE W —EiRE & 4,533.6 5,354.6
Total GHG emissions tCO,e-

ARIRFIEIRBR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BE
Indicator

REY
Nitrogen oxides
meay

Sulphur oxides
AR
Particulate matter
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5.4.

overview of Air EmissionsnNote !

B
Unit

F5e 18.63 74.7
kg

F 0.75 1.35
kg

T 1.26 5.05
kg

Note 1: The decrease of air emissions was due to the reduced fuel
consumption.

Waste Management

As the Group recognised waste as the direct reflection of
its environmental footprints, it has taken various measures
to reduce and manage the production and manage the
handling of waste.

To decrease the production of waste, the Group constantly
encouraged employees to optimise resources where
possible. The Group dedicated to handle and dispose such
waste in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
In addition, the Group appointed contractors to handle and
recycle different types of waste.

The Group took environmentally friendly criteria into
consideration when procuring production supplies. For
example, the Group is progressively switching into using
durable and reusable trays, hangers and cutting boards to
eliminate single-use items.

In the course of design and development, the Group used
a wide variety of fabrics for sampling and testing in the
showrooms. In order to enhance resource efficiency, the
Group required employees in the workshops and factory,
as well as the outsourced contractors, to recycle and reuse
the leftover scraps of fabric materials whenever possible.
During production, staff were instructed to collect fabric
scraps and threads for donation.
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ELENBEYHE
Overview of Waste Produced

BE B

Indicator Unit

—RREEEY) 145 230 135
General waste Tonnes

BRIk BEEY T8 210 350

Metal waste recycled Tonnes
AEEFEERBRIBEADE The Group mainly used packaging materials in the
ME A B R BEERS =& Cambodia factory, whereas the showrooms in Hong Kong
BERFATANEEME -BRERER or PRC did not have any direct use of packaging material.
FPlRIFEZBEMBIN REETS In addition to selecting packaging materials based on
BEABREANBHBES IR customers’ preference, the Group also prioritised the
EM R selection of sustainable materials such as recyclable

plastic packaging.

BEMBEESE
Overview of Packaging Material Consumption
518 B =B ZB-EHF
Indicator Unit 2021 2020
BEM R a2 T8 467.3 319.5
Packaging material Note 1 &2 Tonnes
M1 FIERBENEEMBERELREER Note 1: The disclosed figures of packaging materials represented
WwMEHAREE AR KB RBE cardboard, carton boxes and plastic bags procured by the Group in
£Ro the Reporting period.
M2 : BEBRE T - —FHRANTER Note 2: The figure has been adjusted in alignment with the calculation
VEEITT A method adopted in 2021.
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5.5. Water Management

The Group’s water consumption included the usage in
the dormitory, toilets, offices and factory. Although the
Group did not encounter any issues in sourcing water,
it still sought ways to increase water efficiency through
advocating water conservation. In the Cambodia factory,
the Group sourced water from the nearby river and from
the on-site retention pond that collected storm-water. The
Group treated and tested the water prior to using. Besides,
the Group installed on-site water meters to monitor and
review the consumption pattern. In the following year, the
Group is targeting to maintain or reduce the water intensity
below this year’s level.

AXkEHRE
Overview of Water Consumption

By

BREPRNE K 49 140
Hong Kong Office m?3
R IRIKE KA R A T oK 29,672 4,755
Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing m?
Company Limitedhote !
BERZX (EM)ERAQ MWD AV N 1,993 2,718
Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Limitedhete ! m?
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited 3K 72,855 79,415
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited m?
BAKE oK 104,569 87,028
Total consumption m?

M1 ARRERIBEC2EERL
AL EEERBMBBEERS
R|RERAN REABRREK
BRABMKEM MmERK
(EM)BERRBRAKED -

6. REARR

RBEHRHE AEEEBAFHELE
MEE MRE AR ERRBIESGEXR S
H YERATHEFNDENTRKIE -
A& B A RIEF 0 & 2 HE P BRI HESG
EAEHE - THEXBRRK - NEE
T ERFF0ERTEHRBR AT B
FNRIEMAZERNBE -

Note 1: Since the staff dormitory in Dongguan has become fully
operational and most of the operations have been relocated
from Huizhou to Dongguan, the water consumption of Dongguan
Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company Limited increased
while Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Limited's decreased
during the Reporting Period.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group has broadened the width and depth of stakeholder
engagement in the Reporting Period in order to identify the
ESG material issues more accurately, as well as to gain a
more in-depth understanding of stakeholders’ needs and
expectations. The Group will move forward to formulate business
strategies based on the ESG material issues identified from the
stakeholder engagement. The Group will also maintain regular
communication with stakeholders to understand their concerns
and stay ahead of rising trends.
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7. B 7. PERFORMANCE TABLE

BER

Indicator

EREERERE
Energy Consumption and Intensity

ESs) JK LB 3,318.0 3,703.6
Electricity MWh
R 7+ 50,895 91,860
Petrol Note 1 L
L g 2 F 3,600 7,000
Diesel Note2 L
AT B N 1,105 1,183
Wood Fuel Tonnes
MR E FREHE 31,090.30 36,627.04
Total Energy Consumption GJ
BeLR=E FIREE 41.43 53.47
WABEBT
Total Energy Intensity GJ/HKD million revenue
BERBHERREBE
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Intensity
HE— BEHR —afkiREE 2,238.3 2,627.0
Scope 1: Direct Emission tCO,e-
FE—: MEHER %ﬂ: RE= 2,295.3 2,727.6
Scope 2: Indirect Emission tCO,e-
=R AR W o—aiREE 4,533.6 5,354.6
Total GHG Emissions tCO.e-
RERBETE —&ak ﬁi‘.ﬁi 6.04 7.82
”&]\ﬁ%/ﬁ?ﬁ

Total GHG Intensity tCO,e~/HKD million

revenue
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BE
Indicator
K88 HE Rk s
Air emissions Note 3
=Kl Fr 18.63 74.7
Nitrogen oxides kg
wmaty Fx 0.75 1.35
Sulphur oxides kg
FERLY) Fx 1.26 5.05
Particulate matter kg
EENBEREYREE
Waste Produced and Intensity
—MREEEY) i 230 135
General waste Tonnes
BRI EBREEY 158 210 350
Metal waste recycled Tonnes
BERYEE WE, B EET S 0.59 0.71
Total Waste Intensity Tonnes/HKD million
revenue
BEMBERE
Packaging Material Consumption
BEE M RIS s 467.3 319.5
Packaging Material Note 4.5 Tonnes
AXEREE
Water Consumption and Intensity
HWRKE 375K 104,569 87,028
Total Water Consumption m?
mAKEE SMAKEEAB 99.78 73.81

Total Water Intensity

MiEE1: JUBERTREXRITERERERARD -

a2 : ARBEHARBRENEERERE
HERE R EHHRETRE 2D

MIEE3 : SREBHE R AR IR EFR R A -

Mz - BERMHBREAR BB E-

35 s BURAEIE =T = — FRAMHE TR
THE

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

ms/employee

The decrease of petrol consumption was due to the reduced use of motor
vehicle and transportation.

As the electricity supply in Cambodia was relatively stable during the
Reporting Period, the use of the generator reduced, which led to the
decrease in diesel consumption.

The decrease of air emissions was due to the reduced fuel consumption.

Packaging materials include cardboard, carton boxes and plastic bags.

The figure has been adjusted in alignment with the calculation method
adopted in 2021.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Financial Statements”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and those
of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 29 to
the Financial Statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal activities
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in
the Group's business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 10 to 17 of this annual report. This
discussion forms part of this director’s report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group continues to update the requirements of the relevant
environmental laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure
compliance. The Group strive to minimise environmental impact by
saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials. We also require the manufacturers and the constructor
to operate in strict compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to update the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations in various countries and regions, particularly
in the Hong Kong, the PRC and Cambodia, applicable to it to ensure
compliance. Substantially majority of the Group’s assets are located
and the Group’s revenue is mainly derived from operations in these
areas. The Group was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15 January
2013. During the year 2021 under review, the Group complied with the
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC and Cambodia in
all material respects.

Key Relationships

(i) Employees
The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to attract,
retain and motivate employees. Key personnel have been part
of the management team since the inception of business.
During the year 2021 under review, the Group considered the
relationship with employees was well and the turnover rate is
acceptable and normal.



(i) HRER
AEERZZEHCEYRAREBE
VTENEREETARAEERNER
M AR - REBEEEE E%Lﬁ&%
BE WERFETAE THERE &
EER MBEN BE- E%%E%E
A HRE 71 N B P I AR R o

#F
AEEROREFRHEGERZ AMHE
ZERMAMAERMENSERER R
MEZFTERFEE AR EREMR
F-RMEBTAREMNERE EBNE
MR E R EEE

(iii)

AEBBEE-_ETE-_—F+A=+—H1
FENEELRAEEAR T -_—F+_A
=+ BHBBERR SR AFRENE184
BRI K -

EExefEZamdz_S-_—4%F+=_H
—t+—HIEFERNAPBRE (ZZE_ZF:
=)o

BREARGTRERERK EFSETRLE

BERREAAZEATHE:

s ARFRMERMEMMBRE:

s ARARAEEEMBRRNRE AT
Ko AT Ik e 165 -

s AKEMNEBEEAFTR BARAXEX
NS 1rEE K

s ARENRBESMN:

o EREKENAN AKREXRBNRHFREAEH
AR AR R TS - BE RS SR AR S AR AT
ERAEFENRNEIINERE &

s EXER/MBENEMRAZE-

A RS TRE B ST B AR AN R R 2 A
ERAA IR

(ii)

(iir)

Suppliers

The Group has developed long standing relationships with a
number of our vendors and take great care to ensure they share
our commitment to quality and ethics. The Group selects its
manufacturers and constructors carefully and requires them to
satisfy certain assessment criteria including experience, financial
strength, reputation, ability to produce high quality products and
quality control effectiveness.

customers

The Group is committed to offer a broad and diverse range
of inspiring, value-for money, good-quality fashion to our
customers. We also stay connected with our customers in order
to meet their need. We have ongoing communications with them
through various channels like telephone, email and marketing
materials.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2021 are set out in
the Financial Statements on pages 90 to 184 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

According to the Company'’s existing dividend policy, the Board shall
consider the following factors before declaring or recommending
dividends:

the Company'’s actual and expected financial performance;
retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

the Group's working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans,

the Group’s liquidity position;

general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business, financial results and position of the
Company; and

other factors that the Board deems to be relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
applicable laws and the Company’s Articles of Association.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 9 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had share premium, other
reserves and retained earnings in the amount of approximately
HK$99,135,000 (31 December 2020: HK$99,293,000) which is available
for distribution to the shareholders subject to conditions of the Articles
of Association.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year 2021, the Group made charitable contribution totalling
approximately of HK$521,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group's largest and five largest customers accounted
for approximately 50.4% and 92.4% of the total revenue for the year
2021. Purchases from the Group's largest and five largest suppliers,
which comprise raw material suppliers and third party manufacturers,
accounted for approximately 24.4% and 44.5% of the total purchases
for the year 2021.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
number of issued shares of the Company, had any beneficial interest
in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note
29 to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year and up
to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Chih Shen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Ting Kon

Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina

Mr. Cheung Cheuk Cheung, Terence

Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years either from the
Listing Date or 14 February 2020 and shall continue thereafter until
terminated by, not less than three months' notice in writing served by
either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years from
22 December 2021, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meeting and until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

No Director is bound by any service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within 1 year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation on independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of them are considered to be
independent.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms. Pang
Yuen Shan, Christina and Mr. Cheung Cheuk Cheung, Terence are
subject to retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained
by him as a Director or other officer of the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in
his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company during the year 2021. The permitted indemnity provision is
in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors
is approved in accordance with section 391(1)@) of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or an entity connected with a Director of the
Company is or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly,
subsisting at the end of the year 2021 or at any time during the year
2021,

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” on pages 18 to 22 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group fell within the following bands:

BEt-A=t-HLEFE
Year ended 31 December
—E-—F

—E-EF
2020

N
Number

2021
N
Number

W ZE Bl Emolument bands

= 500,000/ 7T Nil = HK$500,000 4 4
500,001 7t 2 1,000,0005% 7T HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 1 -
1,000,001 7T &= 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 2 3
1,500,001 7T 22,000,0007% 7T HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 1
4,000,001/% 7T 24,500,000/ 7T HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 1 1

REETHRAMEI6ZREMAETHRENE
EFMR AR HEEE—FFEIHE
RIS EHA M E34 K24 »

Further particulars regarding Director's remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 34 and 24 to the
Financial Statements, respectively.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of
significance for provision of services to which the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
any Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material
interest subsisting at the end of the year 2021 or at any time during
the year 2021.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15 January 2013
and the deed of non-competition undertakings in respect of the
Controlling Shareholders was entered into on 24 December 2012
(the "Deed of Non-Competition”). The Controlling Shareholders have
confirmed to the Company of his/its compliance with the Deed of
Non-Competition provided to the Company during the year 2021.

The conflicts committee of the Company and the independent
non-executive Directors had reviewed the status of compliance and
also the confirmations by the Controlling Shareholders and, on the
basis of such confirmations, are of the view that the Controlling
Shareholders has complied with the Deed of Non-Competition which
has been enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has made an annual declaration
in respect of their compliance with the terms of non-competition
undertaking as provided in their service agreements.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the status
of compliance as well as confirmation by each executive Director of
the Company and, on the basis of such confirmation, are of the view
that such executive Directors of the Company have complied with
the non-competition undertakings under their service agreements
and these non-competition undertakings have been enforced by the
Company in accordance with its terms.

NEW BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY

There was no New Business Opportunity (as defined in the Prospectus
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — New Business
Opportunity”) referred by the Controlling Shareholder as provided
under the Deed of Non-Competition.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had entered into
a number of transactions with parties which are connected persons
of the Company under the Listing Rules. These transactions are
considered to be continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, which need to be disclosed herein in compliance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules or the conditions of waivers
previously granted by the Stock Exchange. Details of the continuing
connected transactions for the year 2021 are as follows:

ENENEEMAS:

Rental expenses payable or paid to:

SEBREXERAR

Shing Fun International Industrial Limited

([BEE2EE]) - (“Shing Fun International”)? 1,405 =
LRIX (BEM)BRAF Jinfeng Garment (Huizhou) Company
([eZ=M]I)® Limited (“Jinfeng Huizhou") 43 694
B AERX (EM)ABMR AR Yicheng Weaving Garment (Huizhou)
([ME M) © Company Limited (“Yicheng Huizhou")c 19 231
REMBUREFRAA Dongguan Hongyue Garment Company
([EEZEmm] ) Limited (“Dongguan Hongyue")? 5,085 =
6,552 925
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55 A R A R B 50%HE 1 B0 A8 Bk 55 B E 55 7 5 100% &
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Shing Fun International is beneficially owned as to 100% by Peakwin Group Limited
("Peakwin Group”), a company owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang Chih Shen ultimately.

Jinfeng Huizhou is beneficially owned as to 100% by Jin Feng Holdings (H.K.)
Limited, which in turn is beneficially owned as to 100% by Peakwin Group, a
company owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang Chih Shen ultimately.

Yicheng Huizhou is beneficially owned as to 100% by Yi Cheng Holdings (H.K.)
Limited, which in turn is beneficially owned as to 100% by Peakwin Group, a
company owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang Chih Shen ultimately.

Dongguan Hongyue is beneficially owned as to 100% by Dongguan zhirong
Garment Company Limited, which in turn is beneficially owned as to 100% by
Master Trend Garments Limited, a company owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang Chih
Shen ultimately.
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Notes:

Shing Fun International as landlord and Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited,
("Pageant Enterprise”), a subsidiary of the Group, as tenant, entered into a renewed
tenancy agreement dated 28 December 2020, pursuant to which Shing Fun
International agreed to lease to Pageant Enterprise, 19th Floor, Perfect Industrial
Building, 31 Tai Yau Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for a term of one
year commencing on 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 for office use and the
landlord mutually agreed on termination of the tenancy agreement on 9 September
2021. The actual rental paid by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
was HK$1,405,000. For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 28 December 2020 and 9 September 2021.

The annual cap for the rental payable by Pageant Enterprise to Shing Fun
International under the Hong Kong Office Tenancy Agreements, for the year ended
31 December 2021, is HK$2,040,000. The actual rental paid by the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was HK$1,405,000. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 28 December 2020 and 9 September 2021.

Jinfeng Huizhou as landlord and Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Ltd, (“Koyip
Huizhou"), a subsidiary of the Group, as tenant, entered into a renewed tenancy
agreement dated 28 December 2020, pursuant to which Jinfeng Huizhou agreed
to lease to Koyip Huizhou, Shenfeng Industrial Park, Julong Village, Yuanzhou
Town, Boluo County, Huizhou, the PRC, with a gross floor area of approximately
67 square metres, for a term of one year commencing on 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021 for office use. The annual cap for the rental payable by Koyip
Huizhou to Jinfeng Huizhou under the said tenancy agreement, for the year ended
31 December 2021, is RMB37,200. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 28 December 2020.

Yicheng Huizhou and Koyip Huizhou entered into a renewed tenancy agreement
dated 28 December 2020, pursuant to which Yicheng Huizhou agreed to lease
to Koyip Huizhou, Shenfeng Industrial Park, Julong Village, Yuanzhou Town, Boluo
County, Huizhou, the PRC with a gross floor area of approximately 96 square
metres, for a term of one year commencing on 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021 for residential use. The annual cap for the rental payable by Koyip Huizhou
to Yicheng Huizhou under the said tenancy agreement, for the year ended 31
December 2021, is RMB16,800. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 28 December 2020.
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4. Dongguan Hongyue and Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company
Limited, (“Speedy Dongguan”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered into a tenancy
agreement dated 28 December 2020. Pursuant to the tenancy agreement,
Dongguan Hongyue agreed to lease to Speedy Dongguan, 5/F, Block Two, No. 27
Huailin Road, Huaide Village, Humen Town, Dongguan City, the PRC, with a gross
floor area of approximately 15,042 square metres for factory and dormitory uses
with a monthly rental of RMB383,295 for a term of one year commencing on 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2021. The annual cap for the rental payable by
Speedy Dongguan to the Dongguan Hongyue under the said tenancy agreement,
for the year ended 31 December 2021, is RMB4,599,540. For details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 28 December 2020 and 9 September
2021.

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
who have confirmed that the transactions have entered into: (a) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) either on
normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available to
or from (as appropriate) independent third parties; (c) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of shareholders of
the Company as a whole; and (d) within the caps or the aggregate
transaction values set out in the Company’s announcements dated 28
December 2020.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Company in this annual report in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Reference is made to the Company’'s announcement dated
28 December 2020, Shing Fun International as landlord and Pageant, a
subsidiary of the Group, as tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement
dated 28 December 2020, pursuant to which Shing Fun International
agreed to lease to Pageant, 19/F, Perfect Industrial Building, 31 Tai Yau
Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong for a term from 1 January
2021 and to 31 December 2021 for office use. Pursuant to the tenancy
agreement, Pageant would pay Shing Fun International a monthly
rental of HK$170,000. Shing Fun International is beneficially owned as
to 100% by Peakwin Group, a company owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang
Chih Shen ultimately. It was disclosed that, the entering into of the
lease and the transaction contemplated thereunder (the “Transaction”)
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company.
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Furthermore, reference is made to the Company’'s announcement
dated 28 December 2020, Dongguan Hongyue Garment Company
Limited (“Dongguan Hongyue”) as landlord and Speedy Dongguan, a
subsidiary of the Group, as tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement
dated 28 December 2020, pursuant to which Dongguan Hongyue
agreed to lease to Speedy Dongguan, No.27 Huailin Road, Huaide
Village, Humen Town, Dongguan City, PRC, with a gross floor area of
approximately 15,042 square feet for a term from 1 January 2021 and
to 31 December 2021 for office and dormitory uses. Pursuant to the
tenancy agreement, Speedy Dongguan would pay Dongguan Hongyue
a monthly rental of RMB351,647 (excluding value-added tax). As
further disclosed in the announcement, the entering into of the lease
and the transaction contemplated thereunder constitute a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Dongguan Hongyue is owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang Chih Shen
ultimately.

The Company renewed the tenancy agreements on 29 December
2021 for a term commencing from 1 January 2022 and ending on 31
December 2022 between: (i) Jinfeng Huizhou and Koyip Huizhou; and
(i) Yicheng Huizhou and Koyip Huizhou. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 29 December 2021.

The Company entered into the tenancy agreements on 29 December
2021 for a term commencing from 1 January 2022 and ending
on 31 December 2022 between: (i) Dongguan Shi Tianai Property
Management Company Limited (“Dongguan Tianai”) and Speedy
Dongguan; and (i) Dongguan Tianai and Koyip Huizhou. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29
December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions,
made during the year 2021 is disclosed in Note 32 to the Financial
Statements. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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The Company’s existing Share Option Scheme was approved for
adoption pursuant to a written resolution of all of our shareholders
passed on 24 December 2012 for the purpose to provide our Company
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to eligible participants and for
such other purposes as the Board approve from time to time.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at
their absolute discretion, grant or invite any person belonging to any
of the following classes to take up options to subscribe for shares:

(@ any employee, supplier/service provider, customer, partner
or joint venture partner of the Group (including any director,
whether executive and whether independent or not, of the
Group) who is in full time or part time employment with the
Company or any subsidiaries, or

(b) any person who have contributed or may contribute to the
Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue on the Listing Date unless the
Company seeks the approval of the shareholders in general meeting
for refreshing the 10% limit under the Share Option Scheme provided
that options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating 10% limit.

Details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set
out in paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in section headed
“Statutory and General Information” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.
The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:
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The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
commencing from 24 December 2012 and remains in force until
23 December 2022. The Company may, by resolution in general
meeting or, such date as the Board determined, terminate the Share
Option Scheme at any time without prejudice to the exercise of
options granted prior to such termination.

The exercise price per share of the Company for each option granted
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any
event shall be at least the higher of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer for the
grant of option (“Date of Grant”) which must be a trading day;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(3)  the nominal value of the shares on the Date of Grant.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance of an offer
of the grant of the option must be made within the date as specified
in the offer letter issued by the Company. The exercise period of any
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not be longer
than 10 years commencing on the date of grant and expiring on the
last day of such 10-year period subject to the provisions for early
termination as contained in the Share Option Scheme.

The total number of new shares of the Company that may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share options schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 60,000,000 shares, which represents 10% of the shares in
issue of the Company as at the date of this annual report.
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The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each grantee
under the Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares in issue. Any further grant of options in
excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to issuance of a circular by the
Company and approved by its shareholders in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and during the year
2021, no options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.

Apart from the aforesaid share option schemes, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2021 was any of the Company and its
holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate, and none of the Directors, or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the shares
in, or debentures of, the Company, or had exercise any such right.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s Directors and chief
executives had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company;, its Group
members and/or associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ"), as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code:
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ESpgR
Name of Group

member/associated

Name of Director

corporation

%/L‘,\}?&?ﬁé‘i Z'S/AET
Mr. Huang Chih Shen Our Company
BT ART
Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina Our Company

1. LI REER AR FRMAMEERRN ZFR -

2. MBS EERRAARMFEESE MR R

ZEF+ZA=t—H ®HRAUARTEFEETR

EEREHRA B REEFRBREL BFR
AR BEERRNA AT MR-

The Compan

HEBERER
B @MY (FizE1) BRESLNE DL
Number and class Approximate
Capacity/nature of securities percentage of
of interest (Note 1) shareholding
XEEERER (:2) 327,242,638% 54.54%
Interest of a controlled =]
corporation (Note 2) 327,242,688
ordinary shares (L)
EanBEEA 92,0008% 0.02%
Beneficial owner =gl
92,000
ordinary shares (L)
Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of our Company or
the relevant associated corporation.
2. The disclosed interest represented the interest in the Company held by Sky Halo

which was in turn wholly owned by Mr. Huang Chih Shen, an executive Director
as at 31 December 2021. Therefore, Mr. Huang Chih Shen was deemed to be
interested in the interest of Sky Halo in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

BHEHARER
EEg 2y £:3:3:1 (HyaE1) RESNE D
Name of Group Number and class Approximate
member/associated  Capacity/nature of securities percentage of
Name of Director corporation of interest (Note 1) shareholding
EERLEE (EPN EmlEA A 10,0000% & 37 A% 100.00%
Mr. Huang Chih Shen Sky Halo Beneficial owner 10,000
ordinary shares
B 3 Note:
1. R EsEE Rz RZ2FE=-—F+=A 1. The disclosed interest represented the interest in Sky Halo which was wholly

=t HERBRSREEREESR-

MBEXWEEN R_E-_—F+-_A=+—
B ZBZRARRAEBITHRAEBMERADF
HAMEBKE QAR KERHR IE (TERE
# M ERE &P EXVER) A% 15 - FERE A% 15 3k
BEEFF HBREFZFLBAE KRG EXVEH
FIRESH HAME RN R F R EERZFTH M
HtERRAR (RREESEREEFRBERK
BIBRBIESHRAIRIERBOERIOAE)

HARIE B 5 R S K0 SB352{5 /B it 8 ;% MK
3Rt & B 9 SAR SR AR 2E < BIHR TE M AE (A
HihEes kA -

owned by Mr. Huang Chih Shen as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any other interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company, any of its Group members or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code.
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FERRNEAQATRMDRIEBERADT  SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND/OR
WEEER KR SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

ATE-—F+-A=+—H BEEAHA-  As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to the Directors, the
UWTAL B (EEARRIEETHMAER  following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief executive
AN RAARAF - EEMEBEKE QT K8 of the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
HEBABR D BB - AR A positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, its Group
HAEBREEA R EEMEXVEEE2$39  members and/or associated corporations which would fall to be
HigxARARRBRENERIOAR D2 disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
ANBRIEE S RS G0 B33 AN AFTEEFE  Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to

MEZMAMERIAR be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
AEERERT BHEHARER
BREE HE HHEZEER 2% t:3:3-1 (K1) REGHE DL
Name of Group Number and class Approximate
member/associated  Capacity/nature of securities percentage of
Name of Shareholder corporation of interest (Note 1) shareholding
s R (BEE2) RRA] EnBAA 327,242,688 54.54%
Sky Halo (Note 2) Our Company Beneficial owner gty
327,242,688

ordinary shares (L)

BEE 7+ (HF3) FiN/NE]! ENic3 327,242,6881% 54.54%
Ms. Cheuk Wai Ying (Note 3) Our Company Family L@
327,242,688

ordinary shares (L)

PR St 4 A NN EHEAA 33,031,758% 551%
Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Our Company Beneficial owner AL
Patrick 33,031,758

ordinary shares (L)

BHRELE AT EnBEAA 30,204,0008% 5.03%
Mr. Cheuk Lim Fai Our Company Beneficial owner AR L)
30,204,000

ordinary shares (L)
B 5 Notes:

1. [LIEZATRADTISAEEEEK B A 1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the shares of our Company or
[ty 2 4F B ° the relevant Group member or associated corporation.

2. HMANEBRELZESAMEAY MR=_Z=—F 2 Sky Halo was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the entire issued share
+ZA=+—B H2HIEBITREABEEREE capital of which was wholly owned by Mr. Huang Chih Shen as at 31 December
TEBER- 2021.

3. BEFFLBEES EEFREENRBEEL L 3 Ms. Cheuk Wai Ying, spouse of Mr. Huang Chih Shen, was deemed to be interested
THEAERETRTCERAN AR AR - in Mr. Huang Chih Shen'’s interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors were
not aware of any other persons/entities (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, its Group members
or associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

During the year 2021, save as disclosed in the Prospectus, none of the
Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their
respective associates has engaged in any business that competes or
may compete with the business of the Group or has any other conflict
of interests with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its listed securities, and neither
did the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year 2021.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules during the year
2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be found in
the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 23 to 37 in this
annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the Company’s
emolument policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Company, having regard to the
Company'’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices. No long-term incentive schemes have been adopted
by the Company.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, there is no
important event affecting the Group which has occurred after the
reporting period.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company.

By order of the Board

Speedy Global Holdings Limited
Huang Chih Shen

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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To the Shareholders of Speedy Global Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Speedy Global Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 90 to 184, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021,

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Net realisable value of slow-moving and obsolete inventories

° Impairment assessment of goodwill and other non-financial
assets
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Net realisable value of slow-moving and
obsolete inventories

B BEERE KM FE40) KM FE10 ©
Refer to note 4(b) and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEEEEREERZOBREBXR BT
BEGRECHBR BFHAERNBAEKR
HWERENE P ERBERRE T FH
RREGEMNREEHRBE R _—F
TZA=1+—H EREXREBEEFETIER
HWH5TEEBIT .

The Group manufactures and sells a wide
range of woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear
and sweater knitwear products. The value of
these products will drop significantly when
they become obsolete or there is a change
in customers’ demand. The slow-moving and
obsolete inventories may be impaired. As
at 31 December 2021, management made a
provision of approximately HK$5.7 million for
such inventories.

B THREEEHSHEFELREFE A2 )FE M A EPEH &

HBE - WEBBZ BT T T ERE K EAMEA Rk E R KE
WM FEME Hﬂ:%&é\% EBEERIIBFOTE ¥

(EEDNE ook eaEN

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal control
and process of assessing the net realisable value of slow-moving
and obsolete inventories, and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
the level of other inherent risk factors, such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

BHERTENEFERE:

Specific procedures we have performed included:

e  HME LEHEFEERERGNNGERETTAE  AFTM
BEEMEFNA R

. We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
the provision for impairment of inventories to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process;

. %zﬁ"iuﬂﬁ& AR T FERET G EZEHES
AR FEMNEF -
o We evaluated and tested the key controls over the impairment
assessment of inventories, including the procedures on
estimating the net realisable value of the inventories;

BT

o BMERTEMHEFEEEMREIHE Wil
MR R AR ARG LA M

° We obtained the ageing profile of each inventory item and
tested the accuracy of the ageing profile, on a sample basis, by
checking to the inventory records;

BEFEREZY

o BMMETRHEEHETERE EE WEEFEK
LTI

° We checked the selling prices obtained from subsequent sales
orders and invoices, on a sample basis, and compared to the

cost of inventories;

AR ERFH



MR AR FENGFTFERANTHEE L
BMEREZ T HHEIREFTERNRERR
o 8 I PR B 17 B R E AT il B9 N R R B 4 3R R
BEX DHREMAESERLDERTT R
BERHAEB WERFEREK VP EE KM
BEFHENHETE  HEABEUMLERFR
HELEBHRAREMATAREE-

We focused on auditing the impairment
of slow-moving and obsolete inventories
because the estimation of net realisable
value is subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the
impairment assessment of slow-moving and
obsolete inventories is considered significant
due to significant judgements involved in
estimating the selling prices less costs to
sell, taking into consideration of the ageing
of inventories, preliminary production and
sales plans agreed with customers, historical
experience of selling inventories of similar
nature and other available factors.

EMEEEEwEORREHENFHERREREN AT #R
FERE G WASIHERE BUERMNENMEER EL
MEEREETFENTHEN RBERAME) EITHE -

We discussed with management as to its assessment on the net
realizable value for slow moving and obsolete inventories with no
subsequent sales, collaborating explanations with sales orders,
current market prices of similar products, historical margins and
marketability of the relevant inventories, as appropriate;

BMtEEEMBE AHRENEHESEER TRBER
HEPHRENNTEERMEETE EREREBHEAEEN
TEH] ;

We obtained evidence from events occurring up to the auditor’s
report date and challenged management’s expectation in
estimating the selling prices by considering the preliminary
production and sales plans agreed with customers;

BMEREREBEFHEABRREEENEBNEE &
R BREFHENVLEERBEEE HERULERE
FREABRREMASEZRN B S S EER TR EREIR
RENBE UREERAREERNERFEZHESHEETN
K

We considered whether the management’s judgements in
making the significant assumptions and selecting the data of the
latest selling prices, ageing of inventories, preliminary production
and sales plans agreed with customers, historical experience of
selling inventories of similar nature and other available factors
would give rise to indicators of possible management bias
and the implications to the audit when indicators of possible
management bias are identified.

EREiEF RMRAEERERTGHFERERERMKANH
B R BEATREESNIBE IS

Based on the procedures above, we considered that management’s
judgements and assumptions applied in the assessment of provision
for impairment of inventories were supportable by the evidences
obtained.



EEREMESREERENG
Impairment assessment of goodwill and
other non-financial assets

BB E MR FE40)  4e) - 8 K9 °
Refer to note 4(d), 4(e), 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FR BEEECHSEEERENEERE
4 9 7114911,400,0007% 7T 5.600,0007%8 7T °
The Group has recorded an impairment
provision for goodwill and intangible assets
amounted to approximately HK$11.4 million
and HK$0.6 million respectively during the
year.

EEERRBRSEARBRESELAEM (IR
SEASBM]) URBEAEERATFER
HEXRR—_EPBSEMFGHATKE -
BREBEERENG ReEAEU([ReEL
BRDHNEABE(ERAEEDSRER
FEBEERA ([RAFEBREERE]) fF
RAEEDEBEREMXRE TEEGAEBE (S
FEAEEERE BEEMERAIERX)
ERREMBIRARBSRERAGTE -

Management considered the Splendid Gains
Group as a cash generating unit (“CGU") and
estimated its recoverable amount based on
the higher of its value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal calculation. Based on
management’s assessment, the value in use
("VIU") of the cash generating unit (“CGU") is
higher than its fair value less cost of disposal
("FVLCOD"). The VIU was based on the
discounted future cash flow forecasts where
management made assumptions on certain
key inputs, including forecast sales growth
rate, budget gross margin, and discount rate.

BMTHREEBOHANBIZES R ERENREF WFEBERGFT T
AR EREMESRRER (MEHEY  FET EEER R
SFEVE B R B ) B9 ATk KSR AR R A ) A 7E [ B o

We obtained an understanding of the management'’s internal controls
and process of assessing the impairment, and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and the level of other inherent risk factors, such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to management
bias or fraud.

BMERTHRERFBE:
Specific procedures we have performed included:

e EMFIEBERENATFETGER UM EEREBME
FE B RCRR

° We evaluated the outcome of prior year assessment of
the provision for impairment to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;

e HMMABEETHABEERKBMFENEKTE:
° We understood from management the business plan of the
Splendid Gains Group for the coming years,

e EMBEAEEEREREEEMNREN =FHARTREET
LEER

. We compared the forecast sales growth rate and budget gross
margin with the historical performance in the recent three years;



BMEINEREELEMIEEREERE
F AR E € B G RS E AT EE
MomNAFTRAHEEERE BEEMNX
EARGRMREARKIRE RETEA AR X
FIs R ERHAE WEHEREMIFESHE
ERENENEERREERELR

We focused on auditing the impairment
of goodwill and other non-financial assets
because the estimation of recoverable
amount is subject to high degree of
estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in
relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill and other non-financial assets, it
is considered significant due to significant
judgements involved in estimating forecast
sales growth rate, budget gross margin,
and discount rate used for preparing the
discounted future cash flow forecasts.

HAARB LR PIR N EPEERE - SR BB PTABBLIR %,
° We assessed the discount rate applied to the impairment review
by comparing to our internal benchmark data;

e HMYEFEAHEEERE BEEMNERRFETHERESN
° We performed sensitivity analysis over the forecast sales growth
rate, budget gross margin and discount rate;

e HMEAEZRHMBESANEANETMHREIE TERERE
BEHEAHEEERE BEEMNERERENMHT R

° We obtained evidence from events occurring up to the auditor’s
report date and challenged management’s estimation of the
forecast sales growth rate, budget gross margin and discount
rate; and

e EMEREEEL(FHUBAHEERR BEEMNERMER
EEHEAREFNHE EE @SR FEEEEREN
BER UREZRFEFEEREERENEEREEZANTE -

° We considered whether the management’s judgement in
making the significant assumptions on the forecast sales growth
rate, budget gross margin and discount rate would give rise to
indicators of possible management bias and the implications
to the audit when indicators of possible management bias are
identified.

AR F BMRAREEELETHHmEREMESREERE
BRERTEANHERBREACESHBE -

Based on procedures above, we considered that management'’s
judgements and assumptions applied in the assessment of the
provision for impairment of goodwill and other non-financial assets
were supportable by the evidences obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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HEst A MBEERENGIEE-

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Kin Bong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022



RO AT R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R+=B=+-—8
As at 31 December
—E-—F —E-TF
2021 2020
FTHExT FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
b EN S Property, plant and equipment 6 42,681 53,963
FREEE Right-of-use assets 7 6,915 9,171
mILEE Intangible assets 8 718 5,330
EES Goodwill 9 - 11,387
REFIBEE Deferred tax assets 19 3,209 3,804
53,523 83,655
REEE Current assets
& Inventories 10 44,569 72,425
JE LA BR R N L i E WA ER B Trade and other receivables 12 116,011 126,164
TEAFRIE Prepayments 13 30,058 35,074
BehBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 14 193,107 179,835
383,745 413,498
BEHAE Total assets 437,268 497,153
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RO FS AN R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R+t=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—EB--—F —E-EF
2021 2020
F#ExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
e EQUITY
EAREEEEAEGER Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company
[N Share capital 15 60,000 60,000
&5 4 B Share premium 15 53,441 53,441
H At {# Other reserves 16 24,726 23,075
(REtEE) / REBEF (Accumlated losses)/retained earnings (17,459) 13,815
R Total equity 120,708 150,331
=R LIABILITIES
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEaE Lease liabilities 7 2,636 5,515
EEBIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 19 3,248 3,895
5,884 9,410
REEE Current liabilities
R A1 B SRR e L A JRE A< R TE Trade and other payables 17 190,188 201,737
AHEE Contract liabilities 5 5,428 2,504
BRI R E Current tax liabilities 1,146 2,781
BE Borrowings 18 109,437 126,590
HEEE Lease liabilities 7 4,477 3,800
310,676 337,412
EEHE Total liabilities 316,560 346,822
EEkEEARE Total equity and liabilities 437,268 497,153
LR & B RS AR R R S — R E o The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read
on conjunction with the accompanying notes.
FIOEMUMBE 2 HBHREAN _ZT - —F=H The financial statements on pages 90 to 94 were approved by the
—t+—HEESSHE YHATRREEZ- Board of Directors on 31 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf.
BEER HET®
Huang Chih Shen Huang Li Hun, Serlina
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mOEBWm
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE+t-A=+—-BLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-—F —E-THE
2021 2020
B =E FE T T T
Note HK$'000 HK$ 000
g %5 ) Revenue 5 750,474 685,688
$HE KA Cost of sales 22 (701,679) (625,706)
EX Gross profit 48,795 59,982
b2 = ID %N Distribution costs 22 (6,737) (7,813)
THHAX Administrative expenses 22 (74,336) (191,845)
TRRANEEREA Net impairment losses on financial and 3.1(b)
EB)F 5 contract assets &23 (2,269) (11,726)
H AU A Other income 20 777 3,718
HfbUg sk —F58 Other gains — net 21 516 940
reEEE Operating loss (33,254) (146,744)
B A Finance income 25 286 566
=YD 9N Finance costs 25 (5,334) (6,847)
BEMRANFE Finance costs — net (5,048) (6,281)
MRATEHATER Loss before income tax (38,302) (153,025)
FriSfiig Income tax credit 26 7,028 4,176
ARTEREFE ARG Loss for the year
FAEE attributable to equity holders
of the Company (31,274) (148,849)
Hib2EKA Other comprehensive income
HEJREEF S Items that may be reclassified
1Bz A9 IH B subsequently to profit or 10ss
MEHZ5 Currency translation differences 1,651 4,552

FREMEEE A HIBRBIIE Other comprehensive income

for the year, net of tax 1,651 4,552
AKARERTEE AEML Total comprehensive loss
FRE2EEEASE for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company (29,623) (144,297)

FEREQFERZFEAEL  Basic and diluted losses

EENSEREAREE per share for loss attributable
ER(USREBRTIIR) to equity holders of the
company for the year
(expressed in HK$ per share) 27 (0.0521) (0.2481)
FiitRe e EREREEN T —HHE- The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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mOlEmB R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AAREREE AERL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RBEF/
B2 i Hitn (RFES)
Retained
earnings/
Share Share Other (accumulated
capital premium reserves losses) Total
AT TET AT FTHET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Bf#E15) (BitzE15) (KizE16)
(note 15) (note 15) (note 16)
R-Z-Z%-A-H Balance as at 1 January 2020
28 60,000 53,441 18,523 180,664 312,628
FREE Loss for the year = - - (148,849) (148,849)
Hf2EEA Other comprehensive income = = 4,552 = 4,552
FRZEFBELE Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - 4,552 (148,849) (144,297)
BEEA (UEEAZ Transaction with owners in their
R ETZRS capacity as owners
BEERKEXMKE Dividend declared and paid - - - (18,000) (18,000)
RZE-%% Balance as at 31 December 2020
tZA=+-Az&H 60,000 53,441 23,075 13,815 150,331
RZB--F-f-H Balance as at 1 January 2021
A 60,000 53,441 23,075 13,815 150,331
FRER Loss for the year = = = (31,274) (31,274)
Hf2EEA Other comprehensive income = = 1,651 - 1,651
FRZEBELE Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - 1,651 (31,274) (29,623)
RZB=-% Balance as at 31 December 2021
+tZA=+—-Az&&H 60,000 53,441 24,726 (17,459) 120,708

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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FOIRETREXR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE+-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
FER T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RETENEESRE Cash flows from operating activities
KETEBFERS Cash generated from operations 30(a) 15,614 27,146
BE/(ER) SR Income taxes refunded/(paid) 5,341 (19,016)
ERFE Interest paid (5,334) (6,847)
KEBRHNRSMAEE Net cash inflow from operating activities 15,621 1,283
REFTENERESRE Cash flows from investing activities
EEWE MBELERE 5 Payments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment 6 (2,023) (2,945)
BEEFEEZNR Payments for purchase of intangible
assets 8 - 21)
HEME  HERERE Proceeds from disposal of property,

FriS 308 plant and equipment 30(h) 344 83
RS Interest received 286 566
KEZBNBERLEE Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,393) (2,312)
RMETEBNEESRE Cash flows from financing activities
fEEMERIE Proceeds from borrowings 104,729 153,748
BEEE Repayments of borrowings (121,882) (88,378)
et =M, CRL) Increase/(decrease) in bills payable 15,503 (30,325)
EfRTRE Dividend paid - (18,000)
MENRKZEZEHY Principal elements of lease payments (4,118) (9,327)
MEESHNIESL (RE),  Net cash (outflow)/inflow from

MAFEE financing activities (5,768) 7,718
ReRBESEEYWEMSFELE Netincrease in cash

and cash equivalents 8,460 6,689
FRERFECEED Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year 179,835 169,775
i & Ebﬂfﬁé)} Effects of exchange rate changes

ReFBEYW on cash and cash equivalents 4,812 3,371
FRESRESZEEY cash and cash equivalents at end

of the year 193,107 179,835

FHRE RS REREEN T — & The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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AARRZTE——FNA=-FTN\HIRE
HeBHERRZ(ZE—ZTFEBITN)
EREHSTME T AERE2ERA
7)o 7 i % =5 BE Hb 1k A Vistra (Cayman)
Limited, PO. Box 31119, Grand Pavilion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands °
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2.1 RBEE
FEENGAVBRRDBEEE
BEMAERNNB BV B REE
Bl ([BEHEREER]) REF
EBERNTURD (BB )WBREE
KRB - FAVBBRRDIRE S K
AEMREL -

RET AT EVBRELERIAR
BERBRERETEESHHEE -
ERBAEE S HRE  TEXK
EIREITEE HIE o M AR R
MZEFBRES RS EHE RS EE
M S REGRAMBHRRBE
AR MEEL -

Speedy Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the apparel supply chain servicing business which offers
a wide range of woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and
sweater knitwear products to a number of owners or agents of
global reputable brands (the “Apparel Supply Chain Servicing
Business”), the Group had also been engaged in the apparel
retail business operating in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") (the “Apparel Retail Business”), and the property
investment and development business (the “Property Investment
and Development Business”).

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
September 2011 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is at the office of Vistra
(Cayman) Limited, PO. Box 31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way,
802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman KY1-1205, Cayman Islands.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 15 January 2013.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

MRRIRBIER AR /A ] o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations adopted by the
Group

The following new standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations have been issued and
effective for the annual accounting period beginning
on 1 January 2021.

Standards, Amendments
or Interpretations

Subject

HKFRS 16
(Amendments)

Covid-19-Related Rent
concessions

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16
(Amendments)

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform Phase 2

The amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior or current
periods and are not expected to significantly affect or
future periods.
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2 FESTHHRBEE) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continuead)
(i) New standards, amendments to existing

2.1 REEE(F)
(i) EZTERLENMZHTER -

YRR IRET G R = standards and interpretations that have been
issued but are not effective

RBEHRE O RMEET TR Certain new accounting standards, amendments to
B AR BT ET 2 s R existing standards and interpretations have been
HEERMBITIRZE B published that are not mandatory for adoption during
NEEKREEHEM - the current reporting period and have not been early
BIFEE 2 75 2 A o 7 5k =R adopted by the Group. None of these is expected to
EHIRWAEE U RAER have a material impact on the Group in the current
BIRES BEA TR E or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future

transactions.

RT5 B 2 &MABRHN
EESTHBEEN
Effective for annual
accounting periods
beginning on or after

R BT RRRE

Standards, Amendments or
Interpretations

Subject

FESEIER

Annual Improvements Project
BAGERIEITHR (BEIAX)
HKAS 37 (Amendments)

BAEVBRELREIR (BRI R)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

A ELE165 (BFTA)
HKAS 16 (Amendments)

153 E5% (BTA)
Accounting Guideline 5 (Amendments)
BB B ImEERE7R
HKFRS 17
BB ERE R (BFIAX)
HKAS 1 (Amendments)
BAEHEASGREBRBRE
ERIEBIME F29 2 1EFT R
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BEREMBRELASZI0RREEG T
R R F 2855 (BRTAR)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

EERBES (20205) HBHER 27

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
Presentation of Financial Statements

EAEGIELFESH (B5T4)

HKAS 8 (Amendments)

BB ERFE125% (BFIA)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

ZE-N\FE_Z_TFERMFENE
Annual Improvements 2018 — 2020 Cycle
BEEN-BITEHZKAR
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling

a Contract

W SER 2R
Reference to the Conceptual Framework
M BEREE HERENAEREA
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use
HREHTAHNEHEHE
Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations
Rig& 4
Insurance Contract
SERRBAFERBEE
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

SR BREE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

&E%ﬁﬁ%%@ﬂié%ﬁ%Zﬁmﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ

L

A

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

BRAHBEREREZRRZERER 2D E

Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

gt iR

Definition of Accounting Estimates

EEEE-RHMEERAGBEBNELRE

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising
from a Single Transaction

—E--"F—H—H
1 January 2022
—E--_F—H—H
1 January 2022

—E--F—H—H
1 January 2022
—E--_F—H—H
1 January 2022
—E--F—H—H
1 January 2022
—E-=Ff—H—H
1 January 2023
—E-=F—H—H
1 January 2023
—E-=%—H—H

1 January 2023

FHETE

To be determined
—E-=ZFf—H—H
1 January 2023
—E-=F%—H—H
1 January 2023
—E-=ZF—H—H

1 January 2023
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(i)

(i)

/x7a] o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of financial position respectively.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an adjustment between
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Company.
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2 FESHERXBE#E) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueqd)

2.3 ¥KEt 2.3 Business combinations
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The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred;

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

° equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
o consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as gain from bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

MRRIRBIER AR /A ] o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueqd)

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chairman of the board, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the chief operating decision-maker.

2.6

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the Company's
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year
end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit
or loss.

Foreign exchange gain and loss that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within “finance
costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “other gains — net”.

101
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iiij) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

102 MEIRZENR AR AR o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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27 NE -BERSZE &) 2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives or, the
leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter
of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity
expects to use the assets beyond the lease term as
follows:

° Buildings 20 years
° Leasehold improvements 2-10 years
° Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
e Office equipment 3-5 years
° Machinery 7-10 years
° Motor vehicles 4-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing

proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueqd)

2.8 Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.3.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes (note 9).

customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and
are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. These costs are
amortised based on the timing of projected cash
flows of the contracts over their estimated useful
lives of 3 years.

(iiij) Acquired computer software licences

ZHEPRAR] o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 3 t0 5
years.
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29 FeMEERE 2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets
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changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.10 Other financial assets

(i)  Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement category:

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueqd)

2.10 Other financial assets (Continued)

(iir)

(iv)

ZHEPRAR] o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. The Group classifies its debt instruments
as financial assets at amortised cost.

Financial assets at amortise’'d cost are assets that
are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see note
3.1 for further details.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in each statement of financial position
where the Company currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

2.12 Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average
costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

2.13 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement within 30
to 90 days and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
and other receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. See note 12 for further information about the
Group's accounting for trade and other receivables and
note 3.1 for a description of the Group's impairment
policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity (note 15).
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 30 to 90 days of recognition. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
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Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement
of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liabilities for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueqd)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(i)

(i)

/x7a] o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
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(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.20 Employee benefits

(i)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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2.20 Employee benefits (Continuead)

(ii)

(iir)

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and annual leave
that are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. These
obligations are therefore measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to
the end of the reporting period using the projected
unit credit method. Consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels, experience
of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using
market vyields at the end of the reporting period
of high-quality corporate bonds with terms and
currencies that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows. Remeasurements as
a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position
if the Group does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement for at least twelve months after
the reporting period, regardless of when the actual
settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
Pension Scheme. The assets of the Pension Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administrated fund. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.
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Pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC,
the Group is required to contribute an amount
to certain retirement benefit schemes based on
approximately 7% to 20% of the wages for the year
of those employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those employees of the Group.
Contributions to these retirement benefits schemes
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in Cambodia, all enterprises or establishment must
register with the National Social Security Fund
("NSSF"). Employers are obliged to pay contributions
to the NSSF for occupational risk and heath care
schemes for all employees. In occupational risk
scheme, the contribution rate is 0.8% of employee’s
monthly salary whereas in health care scheme the
contribution rate is 2.6% of employee’s monthly
salary. Contributions to these benefits schemes
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2.22 iR 2.22 Revenue recognition
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Sales of goods - Apparel Supply Chain Servicing
Business

The Group manufactures and sells a wide range of woven
wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater knitwear
products to a number of owners or agents of global
reputable brands. Sales are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the customers, the wholesaler has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the products,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
wholesaler’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customers, and either the wholesaler
has accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

The products are sometimes sold with volume discounts
and customers have a right to return faulty products
in the wholesale market. Revenue from these sales is
based on the price specified in the sales order, net of the
estimated volume discounts and returns at the time of
sale. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and
provide for the discounts and returns, using the expected
value method, and revenue is only recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal
will not occur. The volume discounts are assessed based
on anticipated annual purchases. No significant element
of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with
a credit term of 30 to 90 days, which is consistent with
market practice.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueqd)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)
Sales of goods - Apparel Supply Chain Servicing
Business (Continued)
Receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.

2.23 Earnings per share
(i)  Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

o by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

(iij) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

o the after income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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224E 2.24 Leases
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Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not
to separate lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group

is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueqd)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by certain subsidiaries in Hong Kong, which does not
have recent third party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to
the individual lessee (through recent financing or market
data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease,
then the group entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

BIRDKIEIRBPR /A ] e SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



RO MRS 2R 5E
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 FESHERXBE#E) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

224%E (&) 2.24 Leases (Continued)
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Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability,

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Low-value assets comprise small offices and
apartments.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (note 20). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position based on their
nature.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Dividend distribution
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the Group, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

2.26 Interest income
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see note 25 below. Any other
interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group'’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets
or liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency. For
group companies with Renminbi ("RMB”) as
their functional currency, foreign exchange
risk arises primarily with respect of HK$. For
group companies with US dollars (“USD") as
their functional currency, foreign exchange
risk arises primarily with respect of HKS$. For
group companies with HK$ as their functional
currency, foreign exchange risk arises primarily
with respect to RMB. The Group manages its
foreign exchange risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates.

The Group has investments in the PRC, whose
net assets are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group's investments in
the PRC is managed primarily through dividends
paid outside the PRC.
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) SMNERE (&
Wk O
REERREHAEEE
B ANE R O (LATE
JCHR) AT

31 December 2021

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

31 December 2020

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

RIBRERH SR

FA-ATELHERES
RN RS R

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)
) Foreign exchange risk (Continuea)
Exposure
The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting period, expressed in
HK$, is as follows:

(@

s
Foreign currency

AR% E7 Hi i) BT @
RMB USD  Others Sub-total HK$ Total
Tdr THr TExr  TEr  TEr  ThEn
HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

“B--f+-A=1-H
B LB EEN 49,738 39,075 442 89,255 103,852 193,107
FUEFREMBENTE 102788 11,103 - 13891 2,120 116,011
EREHRAMEME  (126974)  (3,170) - (130,144)  (60,044) (190,188)

“E-EE+-A=1-R
ReRREZEN 46,177 14,514 5300 61221 118614 179,835
YRS R E A YRR 101439 22,546 562 124,547 1617 126164
BASHREMERIE (174499 (5,230 (179728) (22,0090  (201,737)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

During the year, the following foreign-exchange
related amounts were recognised in profit or
loss:

BE+-A=t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E_—F

—E-TF
2021 2020
TER FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

TAE fh i as B FE Net foreign exchange gains
Wz F a8 (FzE21) included in other gains (note 21) 727 378
SFARERARINEER  Exchange gains on foreign currency
BE 5 Wezs (FftEE25) borrowings included in finance
Costs (note 25) 583 532
FNRRERADE T Total net foreign exchange gains
TERH)FIE N W B 58 recognised in profit before
income tax for the year 1,310 910
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(@

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Sensitivity

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and
Hong Kong with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in Chinese Renminbi
("RMB"), United States dollars (“USD") and
HKS. Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, acquired assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. The Group manages its foreign
exchange risks by performing regular reviews
and arranges hedges against foreign exchange
exposures when considered necessary. Details
of the Group’s trade and other receivables,
cash and bank balances, trade and other
payables, and bank borrowings are disclosed
in Notes 12, 14, 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5% (2020: 5%)
against the HK$ with all other variables held
constant, profit after income tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,705,000
(2020: HK$449,000) higher/lower mainly as
a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of RMB-denominated cash and bank
balances.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(if)
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cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk
arises mainly from cash and cash equivalents
and borrowings. Cash and cash equivalents
and borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Cash and
cash equivalents and borrowings at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group's
cash and cash equivalents and borrowings
were held at variable rates.

The interest rates and maturities of the Group’s
borrowings are disclosed in note 18.

Management monitors interest rate fluctuations
to ensure that exposure to interest rate risk is
within an acceptable level.

As at 31 December 2021, if HK$ interest
rates on cash and cash equivalents and bank
borrowings had been 25 (2020: 25) basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, profit after income tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$174,000
(2020: HK$110,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of higher/lower net interest expense
on cash and cash equivalents and bank
borrowings.
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3 HIREMEIE(Z) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 MBEKRREE (£) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continuea)
(b) FEREE (b) credit risk

FERBRKAERSRREF
EY RBHRARARZE
BTANANRSRENR
HEXPHNEERO (B2
REERYIA)

) EREE
S ERRRA R REE
3B o

rEBZEERRHR
T RBRSEFEYRER
BR R N L At R LSRR AT
EL-EEECERE
ERER W EFHBEE
BEZEEERR %%
BHRIERESARH
FRERBEEZRSE
BRI RINFOT

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt instruments carried
at amortised cost, as well as credit exposures
to wholesale customers, including outstanding
receivables.

() Risk management
Credit risk is managed on a group basis.

The Group’s credit risk arises from cash
and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets which are stated as
follows:

BE+t-A=1+—-RLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-—F —ETHF

2021 2020

FE T T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

ReERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 193,107 179,835
FEUR BR 3 &% Trade and other receivables

E fth lE W FRIB 116,011 126,164

309,118 305,999

RZEZ—FRk=F=
TFE+-_A=+—8"
RE D RITIF R F M
REAEZROINR
TRABEMEERTT
Re RIBTTEHNER
BB 2EIEE AT
BXBERXSH AR
ERLBETE-BAER
SHRBEREHREL
ﬁgo

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, most of the
bank deposits are deposited with reputable
banks in Hong Kong and state-owned banks in
the PRC. The credit quality of cash and bank
balances has been assessed by reference
to external credit ratings or to historical
information about the counterparty default
rates. The existing counterparties do not have
defaults in the past.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(@)
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Risk management (Continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, the
Group has policies in place to ensure that the
sales of products are made to counterparties or
customers with appropriate credit history and
the Group performs credit evaluations of these
counterparties and its customers.

The credit period of the majority of the Group’s
trade receivables is within 90 days and largely
comprises amounts receivable from business
customers.

There is limited degree of concentration of
credit risks of the Group (Note 3.1(b)(ii)).

In order to minimise the credit risks, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up actions
are taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivable to
ensure that adequate provision for expected
credit losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(@

(if)

Risk management (Continued)

The Group has the following financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
model:

. cash and cash equivalents at bank

° trade and other receivables

While cash and cash equivalents is also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables are subject to the expected
credit loss model. While cash and cash
equivalents, deposits and other receivables are
also subject to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables.
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3 UHREREE A 3

3.1 MBEEBREE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) =EmEE (&) (b) credit risk (Continuead)
(i) ZHEEFE (&) (i) Impairment of financial assets (Continuea)
FEUBR R (&) Trade receivables (Continued)
R EEHEEEBE" To measure the expected credit losses, trade
EWERIESBEER receivables have been grouped based on
R 4 B e FA R B 1T shared credit risk characteristics and the days

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

D¥E o past due.

?‘E%ﬁiéﬂéﬁﬁ"mﬁiﬁ The expected loss rates are based on the past
AEREEMEEEA repayment history and the corresponding

$Hﬁ§ﬁ9i1§§§ﬂﬁ%&ﬁ historical credit losses experienced within this

R -BELBEBRDL
EEE LA&@%T@E% =
BFE&BREW A
KRB BERE R E A
RATEMEE R -

IS St
—Ft=p=t-=

period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020 was determined as follows:

=+—H EI/]FEJ‘ISZE\'EZB&EE
BREEETOT:

REAME BRANK BRRANMK RRAMK  BRANK
308R 312908 91E1808  181E365A  365AMLE
Within 311090  91t0180  181+t0 365 Over 365

30days  dayspast dayspast  dayspast  days past
invoice date invoice date invoice date invoice date invoice date

—E--E+-B=t-R 31 December 2021
ik Expected loss rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.9% 0.0% 100%
BELE-EUWHEN (FAT)  Gross carrying amount
(M3t) - trade receivables (HK$ 000) (Note) 72,114 27,701 2,654 244 - 102,713
BERE (TET) Loss allowance (HKS'000) 3 4 24 -+ - 31
ZEIEETCAZt-A 31 December 2020
EHERR Expected loss rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 2.6% 100%
FEAE-ERER(TET)  Gross carmying amount
(M3t) trade receivables (HKS'000) (Note) 54,155 41,607 8,661 989 - 105,412
BiERE(THT) Loss allowance (HKS'000) 23 17 4 % - 70
fizy: Lt TeEaEm Note: The amounts above do not include the trade
B 1 B FE U BR R R (E receivables which are assessed individually for

BE AEFBERT
BE—HHA -

impairment allowance, which are further explained in
the below paragraph.

e LENRFET *  The amount is less than HK$ 000
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3 BBRRERE#) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 MBEKRREE (£) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continuea)

(b) EEEE (&)

() EHEEWRE (&)
FEUSBR 3K (&)
RZEZ—F+=A8
=+—8 EREEE
RPAESABEBRE A
TR E - B UAR Z A
2,238,000 Bt (ZZT =
T4 :13,713,000) 5B i
7718 B 5T fy - & Ut R 3K
H—ZEXHAEFEMH"
MZBENR T -_FF

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(71)

Impairment of financial assets (Continuea)
Trade receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables
of approximately HK$2,238,000 (2020:
HK$13,713,000) was individually assessed
where there is objective evidence that the
debtor faces significant financial difficulties.
The trade receivables relate to a customer in
the United States which has come into financial
crisis due to the outbreak of coronavirus
disease in early 2020. The Group made an

1 H201978 AR R 5 7% 18 impairment provision of HK$2,238,000 for the
BEME AN B R remaining balance brought forward from the
SEBpBTFEIER prior year.

BRAS BRI VE R RLE

B 182,238,000 7 7T ©

FEWEBR FUR B R H#H 2 Movements of the provision for impairment of
EJ NN trade receivables are as follows:

BEt+t-A=+—-BHLEE
Year ended 31 December

—EB-—F —EFTHF

2021 2020

FET FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

F4 At beginning of year 11,726 13

RIREE Allowance for doubtful debts 2,269 11,726
F MU E 2 Receivables written-off during

FE W RIE the year as uncollectible (11,726) (13)

Fx At end of year 2,269 11,726
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) cCredit risk (Continued)

(1)
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are written off when there
iS no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure
to make contractual payments for a period of
greater than 180 days past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales of goods to the top five customers
constituted approximately HK$693,733,000
representing 92.4% of the Group's revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$533,667,000, representing 77.8%). The top
five trade receivable balances accounted for
approximately HK$103,852,000, representing
94.3% of the gross trade receivable balances
as at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: HK$103,645,000, representing 87.0%).
Collections of outstanding receivable balances
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis to
minimise the credit risk.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables. The Group applies the
general approach in assessing the expected
credit loss on other receivables according to
the requirements of HKFRS 9 and the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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3 HBXEREKRESEE) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)
31 MBEEBREE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) =EmEE (&) (b) credit risk (Continued)
() EHEEWRE (&) (i) Impairment of financial assets (Continuea)

RERANBRNESHE Net impairment losses on financial assets
ERAEEIEFE recognised in profit or loss
FRN-UTHERER During the year, the following amounts were
MEEABENESENIE recognised in profit or loss in relation to
= AR impaired financial assets:

BE+t-A=1t—-RLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E=-—-F —ET_FF
2021 2020
F#ExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEE Impairment losses
—FEWER R ES 1R - movement in loss allowance
BiEE) for trade receivables 2,269 11,726
—HihEmEE — impairment loss on other
REEE financial assets = =
TRVEEREBEFE Net impairment losses on
financial assets 2,269 11,726
(c) mEELEE (c) Liquidity risk
BENRDESRREREES Prudent liquidity risk management implies
RBRELEBFARRESRES maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
ZEVUREBEHNEE and the availability of funding through an adequate
MEETERSHEAEERE amount of committed credit facilities to meet
THHEF AEBNLE obligations when due. The Group finances its working
¥ ESRBITEER capital requirements through a combination of funds
HEATREEES - generated from operations and bank borrowings.
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3 HBXERERESEE) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)
31 MBEEBRREE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) mEBELRERE (&) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

TERBEADEEHAZ S A The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
SECZENTESRBENS financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
B EIHAAE B 5 AT based on their contractual maturities.
KPFERESEHAEALOR The amounts disclosed in the table are the
BRI ERME-MN12E AR contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
B AR SR R within 12 months equal their carrying balances as
ERTETELTEK- the impact of discounting is not significant.

—£7 MEE
SHEENENTMA DPR—F MER TER @it
Contractual maturities of Less than Between 1 Between 2

financial liabilities 1year and2years and 5 years Total
THET THT TAT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZB--F+=-A=+-H At 31December 2021

T4 Non-derivatives

ROEE (KE18@) Bank borrowings (note 18(a)) 109,437 - - 109,437
EEMERZ Interest payments on borrowings 491 - - 491
MEAE (M) Lease liabilities (note 7(a)) 4,477 2,336 300 7,113
HEBEMENR Interest payment on lease liahilities 240 52 4 296
FEATRR SRR EL o 1 08 Trade and other payables* 186,727 - - 186,727
it Total 301,372 2,388 304 304,064

R-ZB-ZF+-A=+—-H8 At 31 December 2020

T4 Non-derivatives

RITIEE (Mi318()) Bank borrowings (note 18(a)) 126,590 - - 126,590
EEFENR Interest payments on borrowings 880 = = 880
HEBE (HE7@) Lease liabilities (note 7(a)) 3,800 3875 1,640 9,315
HEBEMNENR Interest payment on lease liahilities 355 176 19 550
B BR 30 R EL A JE A S+ Trade and other payables* 198,105 = = 198,105
EH) Total 329,730 4,051 1,659 335,440

* NELHEE b A B IE o e Excluding other taxes payable.

Hiat: RITEREEEEBENFIET Note: The interests on bank borrowings and lease liabilities are
BT FRZZT=FF calculated by applying the respective applicable interest rates
+ZA=+—BE8ERANF as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 over the period up to their
RiE ERHRHAAL- respective maturity dates.
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3 HBXEREKRESEE) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
32 EXERER 3.2 capital risk management
(a HXm@E (a) Risk management
REEMERERBRRET: The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to:

. safeguard their ability to continue as a going
concern, so that they can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders; and

. maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio is calculated at net debt divided by
total equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
and lease liabilities as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position, less cash and cash
equivalents.

Since the Group has a net cash position as at year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, gearing is not
applicable.

BEt+t=-A=1t—HILEE
As at 31 December
—EB-—& BT

2021 2020
TER T

HK$'000 HK$'000

Re RFSEEY (:E14) Cash and cash equivalents

193,107 179,835
B EEAER Less: total borrowings and lease
HEBE (MHE18Kk7) liabilities (notes 18 and 7) (116,550) (135,905)
FIRE AN Net cash position 76,557 43,930
B 120,708 150,331
BB 197,265 194,261
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.3 Fair value estimation
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents, and short-term financial liabilities, including
trade and other payables, current borrowings and current
lease liabilities, approximate their fair values due to their
short-term maturities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

(@) Current and deferred income taxes
Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continuead)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in economic conditions in places
where the Group operates and changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at
each reporting date.

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in note 3.1(b).

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

5

JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(e) Estimation of goodwill impairment

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on a semi-annual basis. For the current
reporting period, the recoverable amount of cash-
generating unit (“CGU") was determined based on value-in-
use calculations which require the use of assumptions. The
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period.

Details of impairment charge, key assumptions and impact
of possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in
note 9.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(a) Revenue

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2021 is as follows:

BEZ+-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—EB-—F —E-EF

2021 2020

TER FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

PR 5% { FE 9B AR 7S S 75 Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business 750,474 685,688

RETE X Apparel Retail Business - =
MERERRAEER Property Investment and

Development Business - -

750,474 685,688

R+=—HA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—B-—F —E-FF

2021
THExT
HK$'000

B8 g < 414 68 AR A% SR 75
HEANEHEAIE

Contract liabilities related to Apparel

Supply Chain Servicing Business 5,428

2020
TAT
HK$'000

2,504

R-ZF-Z—F—A—H XAHK

FEAEELCDNABEIANKE
%49 42,504,0008 T (—E - T4
2,926,0005 7T ) °

136

The revenue recognised in the current financial year
relating to carried-forward contract liabilities as at 1
January 2021 was approximately HK$2,504,000 (2020:
HK$2,926,000).
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5 WERoIPER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(b) EEEFER (b) Information about major customers

KEEAEERZEI0%HIA LB E
EEFHKREEINIT

Revenue from the major customers, which amounted to
10% or more of the Group's revenue, is set out below:

BE+-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-—-F —TFF
2021 2020
TExT F&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZFPA Customer A 378,235 266,285
ZFB Customer B 150,721 98,831
ZFEC Customer C T E AN/A* 68,801
528,956 433,917
* DH10% * Less than 10%
(c) mBEHR (c) Segment information

EEEERMASEANHRE AN
KAV DEER - EEEREARE
FETFEEFAAMELRERED

MBI EMEEKE DA -

HE_Z-_—FR-_ZT-_FTF+—
A=Z+—BUHFE AEBEBHR
EHESER S ETS -

EEERBEMNAEFEEEDE
BRI o Bl Yo sk —F 5 - BE B K
R-FBEMABHAXOMEERE

WARDEELEDE -

Management reviews the Group's internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments
based on the internal reports reviewed by the chairman of
the Board that are used to make strategic decisions.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group was principally engaged in Apparel Supply Chain
Servicing Business.

Management assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of gross profit. Other
gains — net, finance costs — net and income tax expense
are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to
operating segments.
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BHE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—H1
FEMD IS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c) Segment information (Continuead)
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets, goodwill,
inventories, trade and other receivables, prepayments
and cash and cash equivalents. They exclude deferred tax
assets.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. They
exclude unallocated borrowings, current income tax

liabilities and deferred tax liabilities.

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2021:

P 41 P g
R %K

REZE NERER
% R ES S
Property

Investment

Apparel and
Retail Development
Business Business
TERT THERT
HK$'000 HK$'000

Apparel

Supply Chain
Servicing
Business

TET
HK$'000

DBRFERKREIEEES  Segment revenue and revenue

fdeas (B EE) from external customers (Note) 750,474 - - 750,474
EH Gross profit 48,795 - - 48,795
nE - BEREBENE Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 13,003 - - 13,003

FREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4,172 - - 4,172
EREESH Amortisation of intangible assets 4,067 - - 4,067
HERE Impairment on goodwill 11,387 - - 11,387
EREERE Impairment on intangible assets 555 - - 555
BERERE Allowance for inventory impairment 2,639 - - 2,639
*ERGE Allowance for doubtful debts 2,269 - - 2,269
Bt & Note:

The Group's revenue during year ended 31 December 2021 have been
recognised at point in time.

AREBE—F-_—F+-_A=+—HLHF
EEREE N R RRER -
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5 WaRkoEER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c) oEBER (&) (c) Segment information (Continued)
R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H8SD The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2021
HEERABBWNOT: are as follows:

iR 2 54 E g NERER
RE£E RESEER MREK
Property
Apparel Investment
Supply Chain Apparel and
Servicing Retail Development
Business Business Business  Unallocated
TAT TR TEL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERE Total assets 434,059 - - 3,209 437,268
aEmE Total liabilities 202,729 - - 113,831 316,560
BE-_Z-_ETF+-_A=+—081F The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2020:
FE E’J"%%ﬁ; :

PR 5% 14t pE 4 MERER
RBXEE BRESEXY eSS
Property

Apparel Investment

Supply Chain Apparel and
Servicing Retail Development
Business Business Business

TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

DE;ERIREINFEFE  Segment revenue and revenue

fode s (FEE) from external customers (Note) 685,688 = = 685,688
EH Gross profit 59,982 = = 59,982
ME -BMERZEINE  Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 13,225 - - 13,225
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 9,372 = = 9,372
EREEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 4,063 - - 4,063
BERE Impairment on goodwill 122,648 = = 122,648
FERERE Allowance for inventory impairment 2,120 - - 2,120
RERE Allowance for doubtful debts 11,726 - - 11,726
B 7 - Note:
AREBEHEE T _TF+_A=+—HI*F The Group's revenue during year ended 31 December 2020 have been
EHR SN —REER - recognised at point in time.
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(c) oHWER (&)
RZZE_ZEF+A=1+—HHD
HEERBBWNOT:

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c) Segment information (Continuead)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2020
are as follows:

R 2% it pE 98
PR 7% %7
Apparel

Supply

Chain
servicing

REZE MERER
£/ BRER
Property

Investment

Apparel and
Retail Development

Business Business Business Unallocated Total

TERT TER TER TERT TAERT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BERE Total assets 493,349 - = 3,804 497,153
aERE Total liabilities 213,556 - - 133,266 346,822

AEBZREEERBLRNF
(BREEERPEAM) ZEF M

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from customers
located in China (including Hong Kong and the PRC)

AEBZEREHFTERNPHE whilst the Group’s business activities are conducted
T AEEEREPAEMEES 2 predominately in China. An analysis of the Group's sales by
SHEDHTIAT : geographical area of its customers is as follows:
—E_FF
2020
FAT
HK$'000 HK$ 000
A China 719,050 607,279
B K Ab 2 M Europe and North America 22,387 78,409
HMER Other countries 9,037 -
750,474 685,688
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5 WERDTHER (&) 5

(c) ZWESR (&)
REBBRREERIREENINZ IER
PEE MEEMAENERE D ZD

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c) Segment information (Continued)
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets other than
deferred tax assets by geographical area in which the

T assets are located is as follows:
—E-FF
2020
THT
HK$'000
H China 13,901 14,216
SR Cambodia 36,413 65,635
50,314 79,851

ERHERKSEEREBERER
FlR TRZEEEML S ERER
A U 2 45 R W R TR B AR R AR o

Sales of goods are recognised at a point in time when a
group entity has delivered products to the customer; the
customer has accepted the products and collectability of
the related receivables is reasonably assured.
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MR BERRE

6

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

£ HEXE HEAREE  BOERB He RE
Leasehold Furniture office Motor
Buildings improvements and fixtures  equipment Machinery vehicles
Titn Tir THT ThEr Ti5n THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZZZE-H-H At1January 2020
[ Cost 1,266 16,428 3,083 6,248 83,967 5475 116,467
ZitHE Accumulated depreciation (289) (11471) (1,601) (5,115) (30,058) 4318) (52,892)
FEFE Net book amount 977 4,957 1,442 1,133 53,909 1,157 63,575
BE-Z-EF Year ended 31 December 2020
+ZB=t-HLEE
FNRAFE Opening net book amount 977 4957 1442 1133 53,909 1,157 63,575
EHEE Exchange differences 59 167 26 5% 132 46 78
RE Additions = 1312 7 24 1,302 = 2945
LE Disposals - (31) - 0] 83 - (118)
ERT (H530@)  Depreciation charge (note 30(a)) (58) (3,189) 462) (281) (8.784) (455) (13,225)
FREAFE Closing net book amount 978 3,220 1013 1,188 46,816 748 53,963
R-Z2-FE+-HF At 31December 2020
=t+-A
[ Cost 1,347 16,944 3170 6,763 86,624 5,595 120,443
2ithe Accumulated depreciation (369) (13,724) (2,157) (5575) (39,808) (4,847) (66,480)
REFE Net book amount 978 3220 1,013 1,188 146,816 78 53,963
H2-B--F% Year ended 31 December 2021
+ZA=+-ALEE
FOREFE Opening net book amount 978 3,220 1,013 1,188 46,816 748 53,963
BRER Exchange differences 28 49 16 2 136 2 253
BE Additions - 1,756 72 42 86 67 2,023
e Disposals - (109) - (83) (351) (12) (555)
FERT (F3E30()  Depreciation charge (note 30(a) (62) (2,739) (464) (397) (8,843) (498) (13,003)
FRERFE Closing net book amount 944 2177 637 72 37,844 307 42,681
R-B=-% At 31 December 2021
+=B=+-H
KA Cost 1,375 18,556 3,257 5,900 80,834 5,652 115,574
23t Accumulated depreciation (431) (16,379) (2,620) (5,128) (42,990) (5,345) (72,893)
REFE Net book amount 944 2,177 637 72 37,844 307 42,681
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6 YE BMENZEE) 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(@) NEAE2ERSIRMBOTERS (@) Depreciation expense has been charged to the
URNE consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
follows:

BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-—F —T-FF
2021 2020
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER= %N Cost of sales 2,666 2,712
THAX Administrative expenses 10,337 10,513
13,003 13,225
7 ME 7 LEASES
AHFREANEBEAERBANEES This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
e lessee.
(@) REEHBEMRRREINRE (@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position
FEMBRARIRT AT &IER The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
HEBBHRIAE following amounts relating to leases:
R+t=—A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-—F —T-FTHF
2021 2020
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHREEE Right-of-use assets
gF Buildings 6,526 8,501
qE Motor vehicles 389 670
6,915 9,171
HEARE Lease liabilities
mE Current (4,477) (3,800)
FETRED Non-current (2,636) (5,515)
(7,113) (9,315)
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HE (&)

(a)

(b)

REEHBRRARERNRE
(%)
HE—_ZT-—F+-_A=+—H1
FERNEFEAEEEAR916,000
BIL(ZE_TF %) -

BE_T_—FR-_ZFT-_FTHF+
A=t—BLhFE ¥YEHEFER
BEE-

RESEERBERBEZNRE

RATERERIIRT AT RIAA
HEABOFA:

LEASES (continuead)

(a)

(b)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continuea)

There were HK$1,916,000 additions to the right-of-use
assets during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020 —
nil).

There were no disposals of the right-of-use assets during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
shows the following amounts relating to leases:

BEt+t-A=1t—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-—F

—E-FF
2020
T T
HK$'000

2021
FE T
HK$'000

FREEENERMS  Depreciation charge of
right-of-use assets
BF Buildings (3,891) (9,089)
RE Motor vehicles (281) (283)
(4,172) 9,372)
FMBEMZ Interest expense (included
(GFABE R A) in finance cost) 25 (405) (677)
IS HIFR E A RBRIBASE  Expense relating to short-term
(FFASEERA K leases (included in cost of sales
THRE) and administrative expenses) 22 (6,780) (200)
HEEEEEHE Expense relating to leases of
(WER LX) A low-value assets that are not
EHEEE)BEN shown above as short-term
¥ (st ATTEFISZ)  leases (included in administrative
expenses) 22 (273) (313)

(c)

HE-_ZE-_—F+=-A=+—H
HtEE HERSEAHBBOA
11,576,000 T (ZE =T F —
9,840,000 7T ) °

AEBNHEETED
$E@$HFH;FWJ#"* %
BE-HEANNERBTEE
ERfFe

i

W7
”—

(c)

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately HK$11,576,000 (2020 —
HK$9,840,000).

The Group's leasing activities

The Group leases various offices and vehicles. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 5
years.
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8 ®\IEE 8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
EE s EFR#%Z oy
Computer Customer
software relationships Total
FBT FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZE-Z5—-HF—H As at 1 January 2020
B AR Cost 1,822 12,000 13,822
Rt Accumulated amortisation (1,472) (3,000) (4,472)
FEFE Net book amount 350 9,000 9,350
BE-Z-ZF+=A Year ended 31 December 2020
=t+—HLEE
FHERmFE Opening net book amount 350 9,000 9,350
NE Additions 21 - 21
MEHER Exchange difference 22 - 22
#i (MTFE300)) Amortisation (note 30(a)) (63) (4,000) (4,063)
FRIEEFE Closing net book amount 330 5,000 5,330

R=-ZFB-ZFE+=-H=+—H As at 31 December 2020

B AR Cost 1,960 12,000 13,960
ESE 1 Accumulated amortisation (1,630) (7,000) (8,630)
REFE Net book amount 330 5,000 5,330

BEZ-Z=-—-F+=-H=1+—H Year ended 31 December 2021

LEE
FMEEFEE Opening net book amount 330 5,000 5,330
N ZER Exchange difference 10 - 10
#45 (P93E30() ) Amortisation (note 30(a)) (67) (4,000) (4,067)
BB Impairment - (555) (555)
FHRETmFEE Closing net book amount 273 445 718

R-ZZB-—-F+=-H=+—H As at 31 December 2021

B AR Cost 2,018 12,000 14,018
BEE#ERRE Accumulated amortisation

and impairment (1,745) (11,555) (13,300)
FEFE Net book amount 273 445 718
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BLEE (&

EFBR%
BIREBEHERESEPBER &
FRUEEREAFETAEZRRER
REAVNMBATERFHRREENR
SRERR -

BREEERENR
EFBAEREEEDMOEEZER WA
SEReELEM - RETRENR &
FEFESEEHREEER -

PR3 5 1 58 BR A5 S5 48 5 00 T
S IR B A Bl B
CCELEIS P b e
P TR B4 B8 0 AT 3 B TR - AL
HEATERERI% (ZB-BF:
3%) o I M35 OB R B Y60 R A O
ERI% (ZBBE %) BE -

EEENENERDREBEREAR
HEMBERAAREEBNECEL KR
KREREBRERI6 (—F_FF:
17.9%) - B IR FRIZ B AT T B - R
B B RV E B

EEERSENAALAEIERERZA
EBEAEREHE TS EHETLEENR
ENEREAZR-

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Customer relationships

The customer relationships were acquired as part of a business
combination. They are recognised at their fair value at the
date of acquisition and are subsequently amortised based on
the timing of projected cash flows of the contracts over their
estimated useful lives.

Impairment test for intangible assets

Customer relationships is allocated to the Group's cash-
generating units identified according to operating segment. For
the purposes of impairment testing, customer relationships has
been allocated at the level of Splendid Gains Group.

The recoverable amount of the apparel supply chain servicing
business operating segment is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period with estimated compound annual growth rate
of 11% (2020: 3%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the terminal growth rate of 3% (2020: 3%).

Management determined forecast profitability based on past
performance and its expectation of future changes in costs and
sales prices. Future cash flows are discounted at 16% (2020:
17.9%) per annum. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to this operating segment.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable change in
any of the above key assumptions would not cause any material
difference of intangible assets to the impairment.
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4

9 B 9 GOODWILL

THET
HK$'000

BE_ZF-TF+-A=+-RHLEE

Year ended 31 December 2020

FHREFE Opening net book amount 134,035
A Impairment (122,648)
FRREFE Closing net book amount 11,387
R-ZBE-ZEF+=-HA=+—8H As at 31 December 2020

AR Cost 134,035
R2ERE Accumulated impairment (122,648)
BREFE Net book amount 11,387
BE-_Z-_—S+-A=+—-HLEE Year ended 31 December 2021

FHREFE Opening net book amount 11,387
A Impairment (11,387)
FRREFE Closing net book amount -
R-ZB-—F+=-HA=+—8H As at 31 December 2021

AR Cost 134,035
2FRE Accumulated impairment (134,035)
BREFE Net book amount =
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9 BEE) 9  GOODWILL (continuea)

(a) mEREANRA (a) Impairment test for goodwill
EREETHRASEEMYBEET Goodwill is monitored by management at the level of
BEZR o Splendid Gains Group.

TRESNEDREAFENRSE The following table sets out the key assumptions for the
HBUZFERE: CGU that has significant goodwill allocated to them:
HEEE
Splendid
Gains Group
Wz (BEFHIEREY) Revenue (% compound annual growth rate) 11
TEEEFE (HIKRE%) Budget gross margin (% of revenue) 8.7
BRELRTEEIRE (%) Pre-tax discount rate (%) 16
ERERTIAANEESEKZ bt Management has determined the values assigned to each
FHETERIMEE: of the above key assumptions as follows:
B EEEEMALE
Assumption Approach used to determine the value
Wz (EEFEHIEREY) HENBRBRARE BEBEMSERANNRBE_S__F+_A
=+ HIEFEEHERNBEETEEHET -
Revenue (% compound It is determined based on past performance, management’s expectations
annual growth rate) of market development and confirmed sales orders for the year ending 31
December 2022.
BEEMNE (GRS ) AFEEABAESFBERENED L -ENRERSELBENNBAE
RAREEREHRKROEHET -
Budget gross margin Average margin as a percentage of revenue over the five-year forecast
(% of revenue) period. It is determined based on the CGU's past performance and

management’s expectations for the future.

KRR RIAE IR X RBERSELBENMNEEEMERREENSERR -
Pre-tax discount rate Reflect specific risks relating to the CGU and the countries in which it
operates.
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10 #E 10 INVENTORIES
R+t=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—B-—F BT
2021 2020
F#ExT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
=R Raw materials 20,144 36,339
TR work in progress 9,941 14,886
BIRK Gh Finished goods 20,172 24,357
50,257 75,582
B FERERE Less: provision for impairment of
inventories (5,688) (3,157)
44,569 72,425

(@) BREIPBMEFE (a) Assigning costs to inventories
FEERITE B AR i T 16K The costs of individual items of inventory are determined
KEE ° using weighted average costs.

(b) RERPERINKIE (b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss
HE-_ZT-_—4F+=A=+— Inventories recognised as an expense during the year
AEFEBRRARAINGEER ended 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$635,985,000
635,985,000 L (ZE = F F: (2020: HK$557,885,000). These were included in cost of
557,885,000/ 7T ) ° #% % R IE A sales.

HERAN o

5 &R E & 4 52,639,000/ 7T Allowance for inventory impairment amounted to
— T T :2120,0008 7T) RE approximately HK$2,639,000 (2020: HK$2,120,000) was

BT —F+-_A=+—HIF recognised as an expense during the year ended 31

ERRARZ Wit AZE2EK December 2021 and included in “cost of sales” in the

EERE[SHEKRA] K- consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

FRN - AEEELEALATRA During the year, the Group disposed of obsolete

#41108,0008 L (ZE =T F: goods amounted to approximately HK$108,000 (2020:

1,904,000 7T ) + I B B E X H B HK$1,904,000) and wrote off against the impairment charge

5T DA SE o provision.
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11 RENEITHWEMIAE

THEE

Financial assets

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—_E-_—=F

—ETF
2020
FHET
HK$'000

2021
TH T
HK$'000

B
Note

IR AT ERN S BEE Financial assets at amortised cost

JEWBE A R H i JEUZIE  Trade and other receivables 12 116,011 126,164
RehBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 14 193,107 179,835
309,118 305,999

ERaE

R+=—B=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-—F —E-TF
2020
AT
HK$'000

2021
TH T
HK$'000

Financial liabilities

IR AN ET B2 B & Financial liabilities at amortised cost

FETBR ZX R H M FE {218 *  Trade and other payables* 17 186,727 198,105
EE Borrowings 18 109,437 126,590
HEBE Lease liabilities 7 7,113 9,315

303,277 334,010

* TRERMENRE-
ARBERAESRTANSERBRR

B sE3Fm Al © S HIKAE B B b 9 & Ak
ASLARBEREENREE-

150

* Excluding other taxes payable.

The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed in note 3. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.
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12 BEWERRRH M ERRE 12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
R+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—B-—F —ETF
2021 2020
FTHExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEUAR K Trade receivables 104,951 113,088
FEER (Mikc) Bills receivables (note c) 5,208 6,037
H g U SR IE Other receivables 8,121 18,765
118,280 137,890
R E R Less: provision for impairment (2,269) (11,726)
116,011 126,164
AEEERTEPHNEERBATE RIAE Credit terms granted to customers by the Group are usually 30
OH BEFXFrEREEELHERTRBR to 90 days and which are mainly due from customers with good
ERENEFP - RZT=Z—F+=A credit history and low default rate. As at 31 December 2021, the
=+—H BUREFRREZZLHNE ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice date is
BommT : as follows:
BR+=BA=+-—8
As at 31 December
—B-—F —ETF
2021 2020
FHET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
30 A Within 30 days 72,114 53,811
31£90H 31 to 90 days 27,701 36,510
91%2180H 91 to 180 days 2,654 8,065
HiE180H Over 180 days 2,482 14,702
104,951 113,088
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12 BWARFR Bt EYRRIE (&)

AEBRKEFRNEEBEIATE .S
& :

12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continuead)

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

R+=—HA=+—8H

As at 31 December
—E-—F —EEF
2021 2020
FE T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT HKD 2,066 2,179
AR RMB 94,721 82,674
e usD 8,164 28,235
104,951 113,088

(@) BWERAKREMEWRREQF
(=]
R B EYGRIER G I E - B
FRHERRSEERFEMER-

(b) BWEKRRER
AR EREFRENER R AEE
AEZWEERRBE2HMES -

(c) EWEiE
EBERBITRITNRE R KEE
RIEARBB(ZZE_FF : 38
A)-

13 BMNRE

(a) Fair value of trade and other receivables

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables,
their carrying amounts are considered to be the same as
their fair values.

(b) Impairment and risk exposure
Information about the impairment of trade receivables and
the Group’s exposure to credit risk can be found in note
3.1.

(c) Bills receivables
All bills receivables are issued by licensed banks in the
Hong Kong with maturities within three months (2020:
three months).

13 PREPAYMENTS

R+=A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-—F

—T-FTHF
2021 2020
THExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

BNRMERE NITE-
HEm R AR

Prepayments for purchases of
raw materials, processing fees,
consumables and insurance

30,058 35,074
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14 RERREEEY 14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
R+t=A=+—H
As at 31 December
=EB=—-F —EETF
2021 2020
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
wITH S Cash at bank 192,779 179,448
FHERSE Cash on hand 328 387
193,107 179,835
REER S RIRITEBRARIRITHERD The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and bank balances
BREENATEERE: and bank deposits are denominated in the following currencies:
R+t=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—B-—F —EEF
2021 2020
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
AR RMB 49,738 46,177
BT HKD 103,852 118,614
ETT usD 39,075 14,514
Hin & Other currencies 442 530
193,107 179,835
ARBEBUIBEBRTHEEHLBNE RMB is currently not freely convertible currencies in international
o NRB R M INE R G ARKEEL market. The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies and
B 78 5 R B AT A8 5 B S1NEE I AR Bl remittance of RMB out of the PRC, is subject to the rules and
ROERARMR o regulations of the foreign exchange control promulgated by the

PRC government.
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15 BRARBRGORE 15 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
FIRBENEERAT Ordinary shares issued and fully paid are as follows:
EEREE EER R4 & E st
Number of
ordinary Ordinary Share
shares Shares premium Total
TET TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIB-Z-§R-B-EF As at 31 December 2021
+=-A=+—-H and 2020 600,000,000 60,000 53,441 113,441
R-E-_—F+_A=+—8B FEE The total authorised number of ordinary shares as at 31
3B I% 42 20 51,200,000,000 (= E = F December 2021 was 1,200,000,000 (2020: 1,200,000,000) with a
£ :1,200,000,0000% ) * & X B £0.17%8 par value of HK$0.1 per share (2020: HK$0.1 per share).
T (ZEZZF - GRONVET) °
16 HitfZE 16 OTHER RESERVES
Bk EERME EH e ERfE HEAE
Exchange Statutory Merger Capital Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves
THT FHET THT THIT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(KizE@) (FtzED))
(note (a)) (note (b))
R-ZE-Z£-H—H Asat1January 2020 97 11,597 2,957 3,872 18,523
ERES Currency translation difference 4,552 - - - 4,552
R-ZB-ZF As at 31 December 2020
+=-A=+-AH 4,649 11,597 2,957 3,872 23,075
EHES Currency translation difference 1,651 - - - 1,651
R=B=-F As at 31 December 2021
+=-A=+—-H 6,300 11,597 2,957 3,872 24,726
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16 H#hfss (&)

(a)

(b)

EE

RIFHBERYI R EHEQENE
HERAN AEENTEQRA
RIBHEFH R BRR RAKR
1 s M 0 R AT AR R 2 BE EOR
EffE-TEELAESNENA
SHETEMNBARNESSE

.
TE e

AEEXTEPEMEBARBRET
BARETRAGERNEE ARG
MO B EERHE BEELWHE
2 B TE 1 & AN50% © 0% R i e 1R B
ARFERFFE A DK SR E
H o

BB
ARENGHEESRER T
——FERNBEMKIENE QT
PR 7R B gL R R S AR AN P B AT AN
AR AEEMNZHE

(a)

(b)

16 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the Articles of
Association of the PRC companies, the PRC subsidiaries
of the Group are required to make appropriations from
net profits to the statutory reserve, after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years, and before profit
distributions are made to shareholders. The percentages
of profits to be appropriated to the above funds are
determined by the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries.

The principal PRC subsidiaries of the Group appropriates
10% of their net profit as shown in the accounts prepared
under PRC generally accepted accounting principles to
statutory reserve, until the reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital. Appropriation of the statutory reserve
must be made before distribution of dividends to equity
holders.

Merger reserve
Merger reserve of the Group represented the difference
between the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation completed in 2012 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof.
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17 BEERRREAMEMSRE 17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
R+=A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—EB-—& —E_TH
2021 2020
THxT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERTBR R — B = A RIB Trade payables — due to third parties
(K7E®D) ) (note (b)) 85,510 110,485
FER & (FFEEE) ) Bills payable (note (c)) 83,562 68,059
JEETTE Accrued payroll 9,398 11,108
H th fE < 5RI8 Other payables 8,257 8,425
H R IE Other taxes payable 3,461 3,632
JE A~ B 3 5 5B (BT RE32(a) ) Due to related parties (note 32(a)) - 28
190,188 201,737

(@) ENERRREMESKEZA (@) Fair value of trade and other payables
FE
] JE 1T BR SR R EL i < 50 TE B A2 AP The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are
M EREESRAHEEQTE considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their
eI short-term nature.

(b) ERERAEER AEEFZH (b) Trade payables are unsecured. The credit period granted
FEREEHEEHN F30290H - by the Group’s principal suppliers ranges from 30 to 90
R-E-—F+-_A=+—H8" & days. As at 31 December 2021, the ageing analysis of trade
NEFREZAHNERE S TD payables based on invoice date is as follows:

T
R+t=—A=+—8

As at 31 December
—E-—F —EETF
2021 2020
FTHExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
30BEZA Within 30 days 53,899 73,197
31290H 31 to 90 days 22,978 31,294
91£2180H 91 to 180 days 2,343 2,982
BiB180H Over 180 days 6,290 3,012
85,510 110,485
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17 BEERRREAMEAREGE) 17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
(b) (&) (b) (Continued)
REEENRRREMENKIE The carrying amounts of the Group’'s trade and other
BREEN T EEEHE: payables are denominated in the following currencies:
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-—F —EETF
2021 2020
FET THTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR RMB 126,974 174,498
BT HKD 60,044 22,009
= usb 3,170 5,230
190,188 201,737
(c) ENEZEBERAEBEAZ AR EE (c) Bills payable are guaranteed by companies within the
R-BRABETHBEEF=EARN Group, which have to be settled within three months from
BE(ZE-_Z€:=@A) - the date of issue (2020: three months).
18 B 18 BORROWINGS

R+=A=+-H
As at 31 December
—E--&F —E-FF

—_— —R—=

2021 2020

TE E 35k ik Ik
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
T T FHEL ST
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RITEE (ME@) Bank Borrowing (note (a)) 109,437 - 126,590 -
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18 BE (&) 18 BORROWINGS (Continued)
(a) S|ITEE (@) Bank borrowings
iy AEBRTEEAERUTE (i)  The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as
HEFR(TRIEEMEZEEXK follows (excluding any demand clauses):
RGN :
BR+=B=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-—F —E-FTHF
2021 2020
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F R Within one year 105,165 115,153
—FEMFA Between 1 and 2 years 4,272 7,165
MEEZRFA Between 2 and 5 years - 4,272
109,437 126,590
iy FEHRITEEDIRZEF X (i) All the bank borrowings are at variable interest
FE- RN -_T-—F+_-A rates. The weighted average effective interest rate
—t+—HMMEFHERF per annum as at 31 December 2021 was 2.11% (31
MER/2NMN(ZZE_TF December 2020: 2.23%). These bank borrowings
FTZA=F+—H:223%) °#% are repayable by installments up to 2023 (2020:
ERTEREIHEE &E 2023) and the carrying amounts of bank borrowings
BT =F (ZEETF: approximate their fair values as at 31 December 2021
ZEC=F)RITEEZER and 2020.

HEHEEN-_Z-_—FN—
Z_EF+_A=+—HH
NFEEE -
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18 BE (&) 18 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(a) S|RITEBE (&) (@) Bank borrowings (Continued)

(iiy ANEBBTEEZERAEMN (i) The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank

THIEEE:

borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies:

Rt+t=—H=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-—F —TFF
2021 2020
TET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT HKD 68,342 126,590
e usb 41,095 =
109,437 126,590

R-ZTE-_—F+-_A=+—
H AEBREZER_T=—
F+-—A=t+—H%+ -
AstEEERHETLHEY
/28,000,000 ;L 2 & T iR 1T
BEME THERH Wit
AR BE - BREHLBRT
BEXHem ZETETEY
1T AT LB BURBEIRITE
B BB HR K A 3 IE (i
BEAREBEERBRITEE
) eRZEZ—F+= A
—t+—H® AEEE®A
BRITES —HE@EAE IR
EBRREBEBERITEENE
E-F-_—F+-_A=+—
H - FE BT %325 -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has not
complied with certain financial covenants of certain
bank borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$28,000,000 (with scheduled repayment dates
within 12 months after 31 December 2021) which
have been included under current liabilities. Under
the relevant bank loan agreements, such non-
compliance of covenants may cause the relevant
bank borrowings to become immediately due and
payable should the lender exercises their rights
under the loan agreements. Subsequent to 31
December 2021, the Group has obtained a written
waiver letter from the relevant bank in relation to the
relevant bank borrowings from complying with the
associated financial covenants for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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19 EEHREEERELEHRESE 19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX
LIABILITIES

(a) EEREBEERE (a) Deferred tax assets

R+=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-—F —E-TF

2021 2020
TH T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

EHREEUATSEEGYN The balance comprises temporary

R ERE differences attributable to:
ZAREE Bad debt allowance 690 1,940
FERERE Inventory impairment allowance 1,400 776
HeLsr Social security 1,119 1,088
3,209 3,804
EEHEEE: Deferred tax assets:
—12@EARKEIREZEFRIE - Deferred tax assets to be recovered
BE within 12 months 2,090 2,716
—12@ A% W ERIEEFIE - Deferred tax assets to be recovered
BE after 12 months 1,119 1,088
3,209 3,804
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19 EEHREEERELERESE 19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX

(#&) LIABILITIES (continuead)
(a) EELEHBEEMSE (&) (a) Deferred tax assets (Continued)
BERE GEAERG He%2 FERBERE Hi @t
Inventory Decelerated
Bad debt  impairment Social tax
Movements allowance allowance security  depreciation Others Total
TAT TAT TAT TFAL TFAL TFATL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZBZZ§5-A-H As at 1 January 2020 3 725 892 211 2 1,884
ERES Translation difference - 14 21 - (1 34
REEE (B) /3T A (Charged)/credited to
profit or 10ss 1937 37 175 (241) 22 1,886
RZBZBE+ZA As at 31 December 2020
=t-8 1,940 776 1,088 - - 3,804
R-B--%-8-8 As at 1 January 2021 1,940 776 1,088 - - 3,804
ERER Translation difference - 29 7 - - 36
MBS (k) /3HA (Charged)/credited to
profit or loss (1,250) 595 24 - - (631)
R-B--%+Z4 As at 31 December 2021
=t-H 690 1,400 1,119 - - 3,209
A58 [ 3 A B AT A 6 DA 85 R 2K The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
JFE SR TR UL A B 85 18 497,040,0007%8 7T of approximately HK$7,040,000 (2020: HK$4,751,000)
(ZZEZZF 14,751,000 1) R in respect of losses amounting to approximately
i S BT 15 7 & = #929,133,0007% 7T HK$29,133,000 (2020: HK$16,943,000) that can be carried
(ZZZF 116,943,000 7T) ° forward against future taxable income.
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19 EEHREEERELEHRESE 19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX
(%) LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) EEREBEERE (b) Deferred tax liabilities

R+=—A=+-—A8
As at 31 December
—E-—F —E-TF

2021 2020
THE T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

EHEREUTREEGEN The balance comprises temporary

WEFMEERE: differences attributable to:
IR IETE Accelerated tax depreciation (1,202) (1,751)
BEHIgE Assets appraisal increment (149) (1,049)
KoM B A 5% A Undistributed profits of subsidiaries (1,624) (1,095)
HE g R IR Other taxable temporary difference (273) =
(3,248) (3,895)
EEBESE: Deferred tax liabilities:
-2 ARG AELERTE - Deferred tax liabilities to be utilised
aE within 12 months (1,897) (2,486)
-2 R BB AELEFIE - Deferred tax liabilities to be utilised
& after 12 months (1,351) (1,409)
(3,248) (3,895)
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19 EEHREEERELERESE 19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX
(%) LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) EEREBERE (£) (b) Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

APEHE HtbEEH

MEHERE EETMHEE ArER HEEZE
Other

Accelerated Assets Undistributed taxable

tax appraisal profits of  temporary
Movements depreciation  increment subsidiaries  difference Total
TER TER TER TER TERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WR-ZE-ZE£-H—H Asat1January 2020 3,084 1,783 1,448 - 6,315
HABE Credited to profit or loss (1,333) (734) (353) - (2,420)
R-E-ZF As at 31 December 2020

+=ZA=+-H 1,751 1,049 1,095 - 3,895
W-ZE--%-H—H Asat1January 2021 1,751 1,049 1,095 - 3,895
FTABHE Credited to profit or loss (549) (900) 529 273 (647)
R-B--F As at 31 December 2021

+=ZBA=+-H 1,202 149 1,624 273 3,248
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20 Hflw A 20 OTHER INCOME

BE+t-A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December

—B-—F —EEF
2021 2020
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AL (FT3E) Government subsidies (Note) 83 3,250
REFABEHHES WA Rental income from subcontractors 148 386
HAth Others 546 82
777 3,718
B & Note:
BN EEER T _SFREFBBNRME Government subsidies mainly represents the subsidies received pursuant to the
FTEl (R ZEFT &) W H R RS - Employment Support Scheme (ESS) of the Hong Kong government in 2020.
21 Hfthszz— F8 21 OTHER GAINS - NET

BE+t-A=1+—HILEFE
Year ended 31 December

—B-—F —TEF
2021 2020
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI ERUE AN RES Claims received from customers
for order cancellation - 569

HEWE BEKEEFEISR Net losses on disposal of

property, plant and equipment (211) (30)
b 5 s F 5 Net foreign exchange gains 727 378
Hf Others - 23

516 940
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22 BEUHEEEIHAX 22 EXPENSES BY NATURE
BEETHSEKE DENARITERAX Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution costs and
AR DT : administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

BEZ+-HA=+—BHLEFE
Year ended 31 December
—EB=-—F —TFF

2021 2020
FEx TET

RS RERREEED

P AR AR BB R &R
ENNIERRERER

EEDERE]

B EERE
EERAMZ (H:E24)
HEHHEREEEE

BRANEERX (K7D )

ERFAX
FREBERE (H510)

IrE R aH (B aE6 - 788)

HEMAT

JFE BN B 2

BERBE

KEB

% E R B &
EIZR
FEB LIRS

(EEA 53

HERRERX

RITHAX

Hb (H3E)

HK$'000 HK$'000

Changes in inventories of finished

goods and work in progress 9,130 153
Raw materials and consumables used,

processing fee paid and merchandise

purchased 626,855 557,732
Impairment of goodwill 11,387 122,648
Impairment of intangible assets 555 =
Employee benefit expenses (note 24) 69,919 76,258
Rental expenses relating to short-term

leases and low-value assets (note 7(b)) 7,053 513
Transportation expenses 10,395 10,711
Allowance for inventory impairment

(note 10) 2,639 2,120
Depreciation and amortisation

(note 6, 7 & 8) 21,242 26,660
Travelling expenses 2,428 3,027
Entertainment expenses 3,433 3,478
Professional service fees 2,532 3,297
Utilities 4,537 4,896
Auditors’ remuneration

Audit services 1,901 1,904

Non-audit services - 100
commission expenses 274 1,200
Repairs and maintenance expenses 691 832
Bank charges 353 484
Others (note) 7,428 9,351

Total cost of sales, distribution costs and

THFAZ 8% administrative expenses 782,752 825,364
B 5 - Note:
HthAZETEREBR - RBE BEARAX HAE Other expenses mainly comprises donation, insurance expenses, cleaning expense,
HIER X RIS office supply expense and sundry expenses.
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23 TRREHNEEREFESE 23 NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL AND
CONTRACT ASSETS

BE+-A=t-HLFE
Year ended 31 December

—E-—F —E-FTF
2021 2020
THET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REREAE (MEE3.1(0)) Allowance for doubtful debts
(note 3.1(b)) 2,269 11,726
24 EERABEX 24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BHE+T-A=1+T—-HLFE
Year ended 31 December

—E=—-F —EEF

2021 2020

FERT FAT

HK$'000 HK$ 000

TE FHe kL Wages, salaries and bonuses 54,057 59,494
EZRaREEESN Directors’ and senior management’s

emoluments 9,205 10,856

e RERK A Social security costs 1,660 1,539

&7 Fo AL Welfare and allowances 4,997 4,369

69,919 76,258
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24 EERBANBEX (&) 24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
BE_ZT - —F+_A=+—HIEFE" During the year ended 31 December 2021, the five individuals
TEFBREESHFATRE2E (ZEZ whose emoluments were the highest in the Group included
TFE2R)EF - BTN EHRWE 2 (2020: 2) directors. The directors’ emoluments are reflected
UEIHAT - REBEE_E - —F+= in the analysis show in note 34. The emoluments payable to
A=1T—HBLEEINEHRIE (=T = the remaining 3 (2020: 3) individuals during the year ended 31
TE:ZB)ATHMEHT : December 2021 are as follows:

BE+-A=t+—BHLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E=—-F —EEF

2021 2020
FExT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000

EXFHE HMZMUAREWRTF| Basic salaries, other allowances and

benefits in kind 3,431 3,533
B EmERIRET B 5K (B EE) Employer’s contribution to pension
scheme (Note) 54 50
3,485 3,583

B 3 - Note:
RAEBBE—_T-_—F+T-A=+—BLFEN There are no forfeited contributions for the defined contribution plans of the
THHZAZME  TESQWHEK (2T _TF: Group available at the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil) to reduce future
) AR R EHRK employer's contributions.
NS D RCIA T AR R | The emoluments fell within the following bands:

BEt-A=t—-HLEFE
Year ended 31 December
—®_—F —E-TF

—= =

2021 2020
AE
Number of individuals

RN 48 71 - Emolument bands:

1,000,000/ 7T LA T~ Below HK$1,000,000 1 -
1,000,0017% 7T £ 1,500,000/% 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 2
1,500,001/ 7T 22,000,000/ 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 1
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25 BB A R 25 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

BE+-A=1+—HILEFE
Year ended 31 December

—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
FHExT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B AU A Finance income
—SHARITE S F B U - Interest income on short-term
bank deposits 286 566
BB AR Finance costs
—RITEENF B — Interest expense on bank borrowings (5,512) (6,702)
-Eff,/ENEBEEMNER - Interest and finance charges
B %7 2 paid/payable for lease liabilities (405) (677)
— HNEE {5 BB W s F R - Net exchange gains on
foreign currency borrowings 583 532
(5,334) (6,847)
BB P A F 5 Net finance costs (5,048) (6,281)
26 FiBHESR 26 INCOME TAX CREDIT
(a) FIBHESR (@) Income tax credit

BE+t-A=1T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
FTHExT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIERFT1S 3 Current income tax

—F R EMEH - PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")
([EmMER]) (3,210) -
—BANEB — Hong Kong profits tax (3,802) 130
(7,012) 130
BEEMBH (KEE19) Deferred income tax (note 19) (545) (3,953)
EREH Corporate income tax (7,557) (3,823)
RETEMATER PRC withholding income tax 529 (353)
FriSHiE e Income tax credit (7,028) (4,176)
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@) FEBHER (A

(i)

(i)

(iir)

(iv)

)

HEHENEH
KRB BAZMEMR S
EHE-

EBREH
HE-_Z-_—Fk-_Z-F
F+-_AZ+—HIEFE-
BEFNGSHMEH C¥E
2,000,0007% Jt & 3% 7 0 F) A9
FIERMETHAE825% (&
BB IEDIKT RSATHR ER X
2 —3£) 2,000,000/ 7t A £
B FE FR 05 T i B B 1R B
165% BT -BHE_T=-—F
+-—AZ+—BLEE A
BRECERERBEFER
R

RIGEFEH
BEBERBEMRE BHEZT
Z—FRZETF+ A
=t+t—BLEFE -AEE2E
M /& A ) 2 —Agile Sweater
(Cambodia) Co. LtdZ83%20%
FI1S B R B IA1%H &
B (TEEEER) (AR
BEREIBE -RBEZT
Z—FRZE_TF+A
=t+t—RALFE ZHBA
AABE UYRERZWHEA
RSB R AR BL A9 B R
- RIFEEN ST

HEJ R EFTEH ([1EFEE
#J/)

AEBBET BT
HEBDEMEH IR ER
0% PR 7 R25% B (==
ZEF %) EHE—T - —
F+A=+—BHLEFE"
FrisfmiE e BB A FE
FREE A o

& B 78 H1 Fr 15 %
REBECEMESHRE HEHE
REBBIEBIER A BT
EREERAEBBGIROZEE
REENAFEILBRES% (=
T _TF 5%H K E R EM
B~ F BRE e AR B B TR
Tt o

(a)

Income tax credit (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

cayman Islands profits tax
The Company has not been subject to any taxation in
the Cayman Islands.

Hong Kong profits tax

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the profits tax rate for the first HK$2,000,000 of
assessable profits is lowered to 8.25% (half of the
rate specified in Schedule 8 to the Inland Revenue
Ordinance). Assessable profits above HK$2,000,000
continue to be subject to the rate of 16.5%. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, income tax credit
represents reversal of the over provision in prior
years.

Cambodia profits tax

Pursuant to the Cambodia tax laws, Agile Sweater
(Cambodia) Co. Ltd, one of the wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group, is subject to 20% profits tax
rate or Minimum Tax at 1% of total revenue exclusive
of value added tax, whichever is higher for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. During the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the subsidiary
was loss-making and maintained proper accounting
records in accordance with the tax regulations that
they are exempted from Income Tax and Minimum
Tax.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

CIT is provided at the rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on the
assessable profit of the entities within the Group
incorporated in the PRC. During the year ended
31 December 2021, income tax credit represents
reversal of the over provision in prior years.

PRC withholding income tax

According to the CIT Law, as there is a tax treaty
arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong where
the Group's foreign immediate holding companies
are located, a withholding tax on dividends from
subsidiaries in the PRC has been provided for at a
rate of 5% during the year (2020: 5%).
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FRiEHE % (&)
(b) FEHMAXBFAD

N &= B BR B A A M A B TR A Bl R BR
RERRSRERENASE TR
BN E I F ISR EFENE RS
BommmT:

INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax

expenses

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the Group's entities
in the respective jurisdictions as follows:

BE+t-A=1t—-RLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E--—-F —E-EF
2021 2020
F#Ex T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
bR TS BRI ES 18 Loss before income tax (38,302) (153,025)
BEANSREERD Tax calculated at rates applicable to
AEEEE RN profits of the Group's entities in
MEGTTENBIIE the respective jurisdictions (6,760) (25,530)
AEFERBERE Over provision in prior years (4,107) (1,975)
WEBRBRLEMSHEE Tax losses for which no deferred
MR IEEE income tax assets were recognised 4,148 4,795
FRBETEBRIEL Utilisation of tax losses for which
HIEEENHIBEEE no deferred tax assets were
recognised previously (1,859) (883)
BAEMBOH KA Income not subject to tax (452) (1,074)
EIEE 1 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,473 20,844
TR AR F A Tax effect of withholding tax on
BB A B A 9 B i I Y the distributable profits of the
HErE Group's PRC subsidiaries 529 (353)
MIAE % Tax credit (7,028) 4,176)
(c) HIEEE (c) Tax losses

RZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H' &
£ B I £ 5 55 18 929,133,000 7T

— T~ T4 16,943,000 TT ) FE
IR IE BT 15 B & E #97,040,0007%
T(ZEZEF+A=+—H:
4,751,000 7T ) * 1t T BB R AN & [
KREEMET & 5B A& K IEFRT % F A
BT BIESE - RIETR R A
FRIBEE A N A F R AL IR
SEARRIER BTN o

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not recognise
deferred income tax assets of approximately HK$7,040,000
(31 December 2020: HK$4,751,000) in respect of losses
amounting to approximately HK$29,133,000 (2020:
HK$16,943,000), as it is uncertain that future taxable profit
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised. In accordance with the PRC tax law, tax losses may
be carried forward to offset against future taxable income
for a period of five years.
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27 BERER 27 LOSSES PER SHARE
(a) BREXEE (a) Basic losses per share
BREAEBRARREZZTEA Basic losses per share is calculated by dividing the loss for
ERFABEBRAFANEEITER the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by
AR antE T EETE - the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

BEt+t=-A=1t—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—s-—% —E_TH

2021 2020
FE T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

NAEETEA AEIRER  Loss for the year attributable to equity

B8 (FH&T) holders of the Company (HK$'000) (31,274) (148,849)
BT BERMETSE Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue 600,000,000 600,000,000
FREXREE (BT Basic losses per share (HK$) (0.0521) (0.2481)
(b) BRE#EEE (b) Diluted losses per share
HREE-TE-_—F+=_A=1+— As there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares during
BEFEATELETE#EELEN the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil), diluted
TRR (T _FF &) HERKR losses per share was equal to basic losses per share.

BEBESNERELER-

28 BRE 28 DIVIDEND

R-ZEBE-_ZF=ZA=+H ARQRAES On 30 March 2020, the directors of the Company approved
FEMERERBEE_ZT—NLF+A and declared a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
=T+ —HILEFESRETMR0.03BTH 2019 of HK$0.03 per ordinary share. A total sum amounted to
RERB - ARARFANBRE BT LT HK$18,000,000 was paid out of the retained earnings of the
R 48 %8 418,000,000/ 7T ° Company during the year.
ARARESVEREE_T-_—F+= No dividend was approved and declared by the directors of the
A=T—HBLEFEHERERRKRE - Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

3R o ANNUAL REPORT 2021 171



iR ORI i = b 5t
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 WEAF 29 SUBSIDIARIES
RZB-_—F+-_A=+—HHHER The following is a list of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021:
AT

BETR
INCEL ! EEM R TEEH R/ ERRA FiERERE
Issued and

paid up Effective percentage of
Name of company Type of legal status  Principal activities capital equity holding
“B--f CRCERE
2021 2020

WEAR-RABERZHE ((RERZBEE]) AMAL CEREERERESR
Subsidiaries - incorporated in the British Virgin Islands ("BVI"),
operated in Hong Kong and directly owned

Higrowth Ventures Limited BREE REZR 1,000% T 100% 100%
Higrowth Ventures Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD1,000 100% 100%
BRERERAR BREE REER 1,001 100% 100%
Rich Vast International Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD1,001 100% 100%
ETREBBERAR BREME REER 1,001% 7T 100% 100%
Mega Dollar Investment Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD1,001 100% 100%
BRBIRARRAR BREME REER E 100% 100%
Hero Shine Global Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD1 100% 100%
BHREKERAR BREME RELR 1,25% 7T 100% 100%
Splendid Gains International Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD1,225 100% 100%
Hanson Global International Limited BRER REAR 100% 7T 100% 100%
Hanson Global International Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD100 100% 100%
BEARERAR BRER REER 1ETT 100% 100%
Portbase Holdings Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD1 100% 100%

WEAR-RAEZMRIREERBRESR
Subsidiaries - incorporated and operated in the PRC and indirectly owned

REAERRERARAR NERELE R RS 5 40,000,000 7 100% 100%

Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company  Wholly foreign owned  Apparel Supply Chain Servicing — HK$40,000,000 100% 100%
Limited enterprise Business

REEXK (EM)BRAR NEBERE &G IEER 2 10,000,000 7T 100% 100%

Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Ltd. Wholly foreign owned  Apparel Supply Chain Servicing ~ HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
enterprise Business
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29 MIBAT (&) 29 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BRAR
#R/HRBE
Issued and
paid up
capital

RAER ERBAER IREH

Type of legal status

Name of company

Principal activities

WRAR-REBEMAIREERBERST
Subsidiaries - incorporated and operated in Hong Kong and indirectly owned

RREREK (FE)ERDA BEREE TREMEEREEY 10,000 7T

Speedy Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain Servicing HK$10,000
Business

BEEX (AR BERAA BREME &G IERR £ 1,000,000 7

Jointex Garment Manufactory Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain Servicing HK$1,000,000
Business

BEHKBERRE BRER FRECHLRE RIS %75 10,0007 1

Goalwill Garment Manufactory Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain Servicing HK$10,000
Business

EREX(BB)ARAR BRER FREE G RIS % 75 10,0007 70

Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain Servicing HK$10,000
BUsiness

BECEARAR BREME PR (e AR TS 2 75 10,0007 70

Well Faith Enterprise Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain Servicing HK$10,000
Business

AERFERERAT BREE FRE M R BRI 15 T

Speedy Global Finance Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain Servicing HK$1
Business

WEAR-REBREMR L REBEERBERS

Subsidiary - incorporated and operated in Cambodia and indirectly owned

Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited BREF PR (R RIS 2 15 5,000,000% 7T

Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain Servicing ~ USD5,000,000
BUsIness

FsREEREI I

Effective percentage of
equity holding

“B--%  CZZ-EF
2021 2020

100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
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30 ReEREEH 30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) R&EMBHES (@) cash generated from operations

BE+-A=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December

174

—B-—F —ETHF
2021 2020
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FREE Loss for the year (31,274) (148,849)
RTINS EELFHE: Adjustments for:
—FTiSHiE % (MI5E26) — Income tax credit (note 26) (7,028) (4,176)
—E (M22) — Depreciation (notes 22) 17,175 22,597
—#E5 (M3E8) - Amortisation (note 8) 4,067 4,063
—EERE (M) — Impairment of goodwill (note 9) 11,387 122,648
—\EEEERE (M) — Impairment of intangible assets
(note 8) 555 -
—HEME BENMEE — Net losses on disposal of property,
FEE (KsE21) plant and equipment (note 21) 211 30
— BB A — Finance income (286) (566)
—RLE AR - Finance costs 5,334 6,847
— SN U ESF R (FTRE21) - Net foreign exchange gains (note 21) (727) (378)
—FERERE (ME22) - Allowance for inventory impairment
(note 22) 2,639 2,120
— REERE (FI3E23) — Allowance for doubtful debts (note 23) 2,269 11,726
LIEE S EATAAC LM F 0 Operating profit before working
capital changes: 4,322 16,062
—-FE - Inventories 25,217 737
—EWERZ R E MU IE - Trade and other receivables 10,312 57,991
—JERT IR - Prepayments 5,016 7,889
—EMERF R EMENFKIE - Trade and other payables (32,177) (54,960)
—AHEE — Contract liabilities 2,924 (573)
KEMBRE Cash generated from operations 15,614 27,146
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30 REREEH (&)

30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

EREBReRERT HEME- (b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

5 KR EAERIARE:

BE+t-A=1T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-—F —E-TF

2021 2020

FET FHETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BREFE (PFEEs) Net book amount (note 6) 555 118

HEME  BE LR EFERE Netlosses on disposal of property,

(MFEE21) plant and equipment (note 21) (211) (30)
HEWE BB RRE Proceeds from disposal of property,

FT{S E plant and equipment 344 88

() RERRSEEYWFRYEK

ReRBEEEY
RITEE-ER—FREER

HERE-ER—FREE

HERE-BR—FREER

(c) Net cash and cash equivalents reconciliation

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank borrowings — repayable
within one year

Lease liabilities — repayable
within one year

Lease liabilities — repayable
after one year

R+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-—F —ETHF
2021 2020
FExT TATT
HK$'000 HK$'000
193,107 179,835
(109,437) (126,590)
(4,477) (3,800)
(2,636) (5,515)
76,557 43,930
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30 REREER (&) 30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)
(c) RERBAEEYWFHEYER (c) Net cash and cash equivalents reconciliation
(& (Continued)

BE RETBMEER
Assets Liabilities from financing activities

RER
RESEY

Cash

and cash
equivalents
TER
HK$'000

MERZIBH
HEakE
Lease
liabilities

due within

1 year

TER
HK$'000

MEREHH
HEaE
Lease
liabilities

due after

1 year

TEn
HK$'000

MERZBH
RITHE
Bank
borrowings
due within

1 year

TER
HK$'000

Total
TERL
HK$'000

WZB-Z%£-F-H2  Netcashand cash equivalents
ReRREEENFE as at 1 January 2020 169,775 (9,352) (9,315) (91,545) 59,563
ZE-ZE-F-HAz  Netcash and cash equivalents
ReRBEEENFE as at 1 January 2020 169,775 (9,352) (9,315) (91,545) 59,563
HenE Cash flows 6,689 9,327 S (35,045) (19,029
5 BE Foreign exchange acjustments 3371 25 - 33%
L Transfer - (3,800) 3,800 - -
R=BZZF Net cash and cash equivalents
T-ZA=t-82 as at 31 December 2020
ReRREEENFE 179,835 (3,800) (5,515) (126,590) 43930
WZB--%-F—-H2  Netcash and cash equivalents
ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ as at 1 January 2021 179,835 (3,800) (5,515) (126,590) 43,930
HenE Cash flows 8,460 4,118 = 17,153 29,731
BT Foreign exchange acjustments 4,812 - - - 4,812
HE Addition _ (1.916) (1.916)
B Transfer - (2,879) 2,879 - -
—#£+=HF=+-H Net cash and cash equivalents
Z%Mﬁ%{!%}m as at 31 December 2021 193,107 (4,477) (2,636) (109,437) 76,557
AR €3 =
31 EEMERE 31 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

RESHIAIRELCEHEE AEEKR
R EHEERRABENT

The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments under
short-term non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

WR+=B=+—H

As at 31 December
—B-—F —EEF
2021 2020
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$ 000
—FR Within 1 year 5,736 6,301
—E=RF 1to 5 years 364 -
6,100 6,301
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AEENEBERRRERQRSERXR
ERERAT (REER LS EMAK
M) HFFH AR AI5A.54% M0 o A& E
MBI RITRBE AT E -

HEP—SBENERAMEEHEM
I RERMET O EL R R RS
REEFHEHEMBEBRZE S BIZT K
BRAERE-

ARBEEZERE LTI RALAR
BE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—BItEE
EAEEETEAR I B EHNEE
Al

BERREXERAR (BHEEEK])

The immediate and ultimate holding company of the Group is
Sky Halo Holdings Limited (incorporated in the BVI), which owns
54.54% of the Company’s shares. The ultimate controlling party
and chief executive officer of the Group is Mr. Huang.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has, directly
or indirectly, the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other parties in making financial
and operating decisions.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following
companies and individual were related parties that had
significant transactions or balances with the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021:

BHEEENELRES

(Shing Fun International Industrial Limited
(“Shing Fun International™)

SERX (EMERAR([£EFIM])

(Jinfeng Garment (Huizhou) Company Limited)
(“linfeng Huizhou")

B AERR CEMN) BRG] (MEHEM])

(Yicheng Weaving Garment (Huizhou) Company Limited)
("Yicheng Huizhou")

BEEESR (BN BERAR (TBEEFEIM])

(Shingfeng Weaving Garment (Huizhou) Company Limited)
(“Shingfeng Huizhou")

REEAMERRER AR ([REHEL])

(Dongguan Zhirong Garment Company Limited)
("“Dongguan zhirong”)
EMBHMREARAR ([REmBis])

(Dongguan Hongyue Garment Company Limited)
("“Dongguan Hongyue")

BEAENKRARAR ([BEEE])

(Shing Fun Knitting & Garment Limited)(“Shing Fun Knitting")

Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

& ST A R H LR
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

mEAAERELRZES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

& ST A R H L R AE
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

RELEAEREARZES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

M ST A R H LR IE
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

FR B 5 A No L 4B 42 )
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his sister
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 EXRAERRS (&) 32 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a) BAEFRXEF (a) Related party transactions
BRABmEREMEREFEEIN Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
REBEE-TE-_—F+A=+— during the year ended 31 December 2021, the following
BIEFE NEBE Y EEEF#ET transactions were carried out between the Group and
UWTRG - ARBEERE BiE related parties. In the opinion of the directors of the
FRGTINABERBEPET Company, the related party transactions were carried out
BBGEF TR E R R E T in the normal course of business and at terms negotiated
7 o between the Group and the respective related parties.

BEt+t-A=+—-BHLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-—F —ETFF
2021 2020
FHExT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
() LB 17525 () Short-term lease expenses payable
HERS or paid to
REETIG Dongguan Hongyue 5,085 -
& 2= Jinfeng Huizhou 43 -
s 22 [ B Shing Fun International 1,728 =
s L A E X Shing Fun Knitting& Garment 131 133
B E M Yicheng Huizhou 19 =
7,006 133
(i) BUTEZTZHE (i) Finance costs incurred for leases with
BB BELE
REETHIB Dongguan Hongyue - 72
s 2 B R Shing Fun International - 52
e LEM Jinfeng Huizhou - 16
B EM Yicheng Huizhou - 6
= 146
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 EXRAERRS (&) 32 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(@) BERIRZ (&) (@) Related party transactions (Continuead)
R+=—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—B-—F —ETF
2021 2020
FTHT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(i) A fETHIE (ii)) Other payables
P 22 =M Shingfeng Huizhou - 28
— 28
rFHlEMAEESEHRAERE  EIR The above balances due to related parties are interest free,
HRAREREE- unsecured and repayable on demand.
(b) SREEEH M (b) Senior management’s compensations

BE+t-A=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December

—E-—F —ETHF
2021 2020
FERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

ITERFEUR Wages and salaries and other benefits
H B W& in kind 9,133 10,766
FEERERK A Social security costs 72 90

9.205 10,856
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33 RATFMBERRARRFHEEE 33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

R+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
FHET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
REBEE Non-current assets
KRB AR ZIEE Investments in subsidiaries 226,876 226,876
RBEE Current assets
FE IE Prepayments 292 285
FE UL % B Dividend receivable — =
Ny e Other receivables 78,027 67,391
HekBEeZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 11 12
78,330 67,688
EEH#E Total assets 305,206 294,564
R EQUITY
EATEEFEEA Equity attributable to equity
bR holders of the Company
fi& 7 Share capital 60,000 60,000
% 17 % (B Share premium 53,441 53,441
Huh Other reserve ) 46,836 46,836
RETEE Accumulated losses @) (1,142) (984)
159,135 159,293
a& LIABILITIES
RBAE Current liability
H A FE T 5RI8 Other payables 146,071 135,271
ERBEERERE Total equity and liability 305,206 294,564
KRR BRAARERZE-__F=F8 The statement of financial position of the Company was
Zt+t—HHEESHAETHUTRERR approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2022 and was
Fo signed on its behalf.
BER BB
Huang Chih Shen Huang Li Hun, Serlina

180 ARIRFIEIRBR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



iR ORI i = b 5t

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 ARAHBRRARRFHEEB
(%)

(@ AAFRRFAEREH

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(@) Movement of accumulated losses of the
Company

TAT
HK$'000

R-ZZE-ZF—H—H As at 1 January 2020 19,267
FREE Loss for the year (2,251)
f% & Dividend (18,000)
R-E-_ZEF+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2020 (984)
R-—E-—%—HA—H As at 1 January 2021 (984)
FANEE Loss for the year (158)
R-E-_—F+=-ZHA=+—H As at 31 December 2021 (1,142)

(b) HftfE
AREEMBEEERE-_T——F
TR EEPTREHE R RRIRE
PR B R HE R AP AT AR
MEEZENZER-

(b) Other reserve
Other reserve of the Company represented the difference
between the investment cost in the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation completed in 2012 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof.
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3 EERFETHAEMS 34 DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS
BEEENK
F13 BERL B[R HHER
Employer's
contribution
toa
retirement
Discretionary benefit
Salary bonus scheme Total
TET THT TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-ZE--% Year ended 31 December 2021
+-A=+-BLEE
HITEF Executive directors
BrE Mr. Huang 4,397 - 18 4,415
HELERT Ms Huang Li Hun, Serlina 1,430 - 18 1,448
BUHRTEE Independent non-executive directors
HESAE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 180 - - 180
20k R Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 180 - - 180
ROELE Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 180 - - 180
BiREL Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny 180 - - 180
6,547 36 6,583
BE-Z-%% Year ended 31 December 2020
+=-A=+-BLEE
HITEF Executive directors
AL Mr. Huang 4,049 300 18 4,367
EL 2SN Ms Huang Li Hun, Serlina 1,265 - 16 1,281
Bt & Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick 183 = 2 185
BUHRTEE Independent non-executive directors
HEESAE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 180 - - 180
20k R Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 180 = = 180
ROELE Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 180 = = 180
B EL Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny 180 = = 180
6,217 300 36 6,553
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34

EERTETHRAEME (4

BEERARAITRAR BBEER
BE_T_—F+t-_A=1—"BLEE

RELRERRZEMHE (ZT_FTF:
&) -

EREXIN T _TF_A+HAE
ZEREENEANRKEER T _FTF
“AtHBEBEES-

BE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HBILEE"
AEBBERAESIAEANE  EA
%ﬁ%l?&iﬂu)\ibu)\ﬁﬁlﬁ%mﬁﬁbiﬁi
ERBBEE (ZS_FF &) -

(@) EFRAFE
VEREFERARAHENBER
AR EI5 PR AV LA AR TS T 2 A

HEMN 2 RARFE (ZF_FF:
&)

(b) EERILRBEMNRIFE
FRUEAE S EAREX
MaE (FRESRABHERER L
RENHE( T _FTF &) -

(c) MREHMESREMAE=TX
R E
MERE - BALTRENDAES
W% (HREETESHMEAEM
SO RE) M B NERS=
TOREB(ZT_FF &) -

34 DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Mr. Huang is the chief executive officer of the Company. No
director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina was appointed as director on 14
February 2020 and Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick resigned as
director on 14 February 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2020: Nil).

(a) Directors’ retirement benefits
No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking (2020: Nil).

(b) Directors’ termination payments or benefits
No payment was made or benefit provided to directors as
compensation for the early termination of the appointment
or in respect of termination of the services of directors
during the year (2020: Nil).

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services
No consideration was provided to or receivable by any
third party for making available the services of a person as
a director of a company, or in any other capacity while as a
director (2020: Nil).
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34

35

184

EERTETHRAEME (4

d) EE - ZESZFNEAER
REESAHENERZENK
BLULERURERZEALH
HitXZHEHR
TR THEF REFEHNL
AERFBEEEEMENERZE
FBUERARBERZEFEALH
HRXHHERERN (T _FF:
®) -

() EFHEXRS RHIEASHHH
EXER
R mREMEMPTREEIN
RERE T —FFRIMEF
B AEEBEBZT TSRS
BEBMANRZESTERAME
EETFHEEARGCEER S
RHREH(ZZE_FTF &)

HEREE

R = ZF & E RIR201958 MR E
SR (019X FSHDE AEEE
EEERIBEEE B RThiEEE
BREUSAMETERBLHETE TR
EMRGRZEG S5 TERETRE
nos TR R A BT @ E KR ETER
REAREBHRBLAREHSE - ATE
ERE2019T R RS RE TS e iEmK
WEE AEECRBRBAEEER I
MEABRLEREERHE - AEEBR
IR E2019B R m SR ERE - Wil (A
HUAEBMUBRAREEEEEED
FE-BEZERENEUBRENERTE
B Hf - A & B 37 & 207 1 7220197 ARk R
SRUVBERREENTAERTHE
5,

34 DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors
There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the year
(2020: Nil).

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
no significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year 2021
(2020: Nil).

35 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Following the fifth wave of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“the
COVID-19") in early 2022, a series of precautionary and control
measures have been and continued to be implemented
across the PRC and Hong Kong, including certain level of
restrictions and controls over the travelling of people and traffic
arrangements, quarantine of certain residents, heightening of
hygiene and epidemic prevention requirements in factories
and offices and encouraged social distancing, etc. In order to
minimise the impact of the COVID-19 and changes in the market,
the Group has actively coordinated relevant resources and
adjusted production and operation arrangements in a timely
manner. The Group will pay close attention to the development
of the COVID-19 and evaluate its impact on the financial position
and operating results of the Group. As at the date on which this
set of financial statements were authorised for issue, the Group
was not aware of any material adverse effects on the financial
statements as a result of the COVID-19.
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